
 

 

 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

 
A Meeting of East Hampshire District Council will be held via Skype for Business on 
Thursday, 25 February 2021 at 6.00 pm when your attendance is requested to 
consider the business set out in the agenda below.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Gill Kneller 
Chief Executive 

 
 

   

AGENDA 
 

PART 1 (Items open to the Public)  
 
1  Chairman's Announcements   

 
To receive any reports the Chairman wishes to make. 
 
2  Apologies for Absence, Confirmation of Attendance and Declarations 

of Interest   
 

To receive and record any apologies for absence. 
 
3  Confirmation of Previous Minutes   

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 14 January 2021. 
 
4  Public Questions (Standing Order 27.5   

 
To deal with any public questions notified no later than 12 noon three working days 
before the meeting and in accordance with the Council’s protocol for public 
questions.  
 
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14523/ProtocolforPublicQuestionsat 
EHDCCouncilJanuary2020.docx.pdf 
 

https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14523/ProtocolforPublicQuestionsat%20EHDCCouncilJanuary2020.docx.pdf
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14523/ProtocolforPublicQuestionsat%20EHDCCouncilJanuary2020.docx.pdf


 

 

5  Budget Speech   
 

6  2021-22 Revenue Budget, Capital Budget, Reserves and Balances, 
Capital Strategy, Treasury Management Strategy and Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS)  (Pages 1 - 78) 
 

To consider the attached report together with any recommendations from the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 23 February 2021. 
 
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2014, a recorded vote will be taken on this item. 
 
7  Cabinet and Committee Recommendations  (Pages 79 - 88) 

 
Recommendation arising from the meeting of the Cabinet held on 4 February 2021  
 
(A) PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER (DOGS) UNDER ANTI SOCIAL   
      BEHAVIOUR AND POLICE ACT 2014 
 
8  Appointments to Planning Policy Committee   

 
Recommended that the following appointments to the Planning Policy Committee be 
approved: 
 
Conservative  
 
Chairman: Cllr Angela Glass 
 
Vice-Chairman: Cllr Graham Hill 
 
Cllr Keith Budden 
Cllr David Evans 
Cllr Bill Mouland 
Cllr Sally Pond 
Cllr Sara Schillemore 
Cllr Anthony Williams 
 
Liberal Democrat 
 
Cllr Steve Hunt 
Cllr Elaine Woodard 
 
  
 
9  Portfolio Holder Reports to Council  (Pages 89 - 104) 

 
10  Questions under Procedural Order 27.4.1   

 
To deal with any questions from Councillors submitted by 12 noon three working 
days before the meeting. 
 



 

 

11  Questions under Procedural Order 27.4.2   
 

To deal with any urgent questions received no less than two hours prior to the start 
of the meeting and in accordance with standing order 27.4.2. 
 
12  Committee Minutes   

 
To receive the minutes of the following Committees held since the last meeting of 
the Council: 
 
Cabinet – 10 December 2020 
Cabinet – 14 January 2021 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



  

                                                                            

 

NON-EXEMPT  

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL   

 

Full Council         25 February 2021 

        

2021-22 Revenue budget, Capital budget, Reserves and Balances, 

Capital Strategy, Treasury Management Strategy and Medium-Term 

Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

 

FOR DECISION  

 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Charles Louisson 

Key Decision: Yes  

Report Number: EHCL/064/2021  

1. Purpose 

1.1. This paper is submitted to Full Council with the proposed 2021-22 Revenue 

budget, Capital budget, Reserves and Balances, Capital Strategy, Treasury 

Management Strategy and Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  

2. Recommendation 

2.1. That Full Council 

 

a. Agrees the proposed Revenue and Capital budgets for 2021-22 including a 

Council Tax rate of £136.41 at Band D, representing a 2% increase on the 

current charge; 

 

b. Agrees the proposed Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital Strategy, 

Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators. 

 

c. Agrees the Fees & Charges schedule for 2021-22. 

 

d. Agrees the Council Tax Resolution 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



  

                                                                            

 

3. Executive Summary 

3.1. The 2021-22 budget position for next year is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 
3.2. The budget 2021-22 has been prepared in the context of the ongoing Covid-19 

pandemic. As a result of the pandemic, Central Government postponed the multi-

year Spending Review settlement in favour of a one-year financial settlement 

which has further created uncertainty in the medium and long term for Local 

Government finances. 

 

3.3. Ahead of the Local Government Financial Settlement the budget was prepared on 

the assumption that no further central Government financial assistance would be 

provided and accordingly through organisational efficiencies the organisation was 

able to set an initial draft balanced budget. 

 

3.4. Following the Local Government Financial Settlement new funding has been 

provided which has been earmarked for Council priorities going forward and is not 

being used to support the existing revenue budget. 

4. Additional Budgetary Implications  

4.1. None 

5. Background and relationship to Corporate Strategy and/or Business Plans 

Revenue budget 

5.1. The revenue budgets are set on an incremental approach, identifying areas of 

pressure and potential areas of savings compared to the previous year budget. 

Staffing and contract costs are our two major expenses and are subject to yearly 

inflationary increases. The revenue budget 2021-22 is included at Appendix A. 

 

5.2. The budget has been built to support and deliver the Corporate Strategy, and the 

supporting strategies including the Climate & Environment Strategy, Digital 

Strategy and our Welfare & Wellbeing Strategy. 

 

 
Forecast 

£’000 

Net Cost of Services 11,352 

Council Tax, Business Rates & Grant Income (11,352) 

(Surplus) / Deficit  - 

Page 2



  

                                                                            

 

5.3. During the budget process for 2021-22 services were challenged to find savings 

within services, this including considering alternative methods of delivering 

services and exploring the possibilities of enhancing income generation. Heads of 

Services were also asked to and identify any cost pressures. Non-Statutory (those 

not set by Central Government) Fees and Charges were reviewed and increased 

where services managers felt this was appropriate. 

 

5.4. Budget Challenge Review sessions were held in the first instance between Heads 

of Service and their Directors, the results of these were also reviewed and 

challenged by the Executive Board.  In late November the Cabinet undertook a 

detailed review of the proposals from Heads of Service and these sessions 

resulted in identification of further savings of £0.788M.  This resulted in a 

balanced budget prior to the Local Government Financial Settlement in 

December. As a result of the Local Government Financial Settlement additional 

funding has been provided which has allowed the Council to set aside amounts to 

target corporate priorities in the years going forward. 

 

5.5. As part of the budget review the Council has currently earmarked the following 

amounts to support Corporate priorities: 

a. Supporting Communities Fund (£1M). This fund was established in 2019 

for a period of three years with an initial allocation of £1M. The proposal is to 

add a further £1M to the fund to allow it to continue to operate for a further 

three years. The aims of the fund are to provide grants to help support 

positive mental health in residents, in particular younger people, reduce 

social isolation in residents, in particular older people and supporting the 

recovery of residents from the coronavirus pandemic.  

b. Digital Strategy Investment Reserve (£1M). This fund is a newly 

established fund to support the delivery of the approved Digital Strategy. The 

aims of the Digital Strategy is to create a ‘digital council’ with digitally ‘savvy’ 

staff and councillors and services designed to be accessible and convenient 

for our customers which in turn will meet needs of our residents, protect 

residents’ privacy and security and enhance value for money. 

c. Environmental initiatives (£0.250M). This fund is additional funding for our 

existing environmental reserve in order to support our Climate and 

Environmental Strategy. East Hampshire District Council declared a climate 

Emergency in 2019 and the fund will be used in order to assist in our 

response to the climate emergency. 

d. Property Resilience (£1.250M). This is additional funding for the Property 

Resilience Reserve which was established in 2020. The reserve is intended 

Page 3



  

                                                                            

 

to mitigate the risk of future voids, renewals and investment required by the 

Landlord. 

e. Financial Stability (£1.312M). This is additional funding for our financial 

stability reserve.  This reserve is specifically to smooth the impact on the 

revenue account from unforeseen expenditure.  It includes our pension 

reserve which is set up to mitigate against any future shortfalls in our 

pension fund arising from the tri-annual actuarial valuations.  It will also hold 

funds established for future Covid response and recovery work. 

 

5.6. The key implications as a result of the 2020 Spending Review and 2021-22 Local 

Government Financial Settlement are: 

a. Ability for District Council’s to raise Council Tax by 2% or £5 (whichever is 

the highest) without the need to hold a referendum. 

b. A further funding allocation of un-ringfenced monies to response to Covid-19 

– £0.490M 

c. A new un-ringfenced Lower Services Tier Grant - £0.865M 

d. An extension of the lost sales, fees and charges income recovery scheme 

for the first three months of the next financial year 

e. Additional funds of un-ringfenced grant funding to enable Council to continue 

reducing Council Tax bills for those least able to pay, including households 

affected by Covid-19 - £0.109M. 

f. A new scheme to cover collection fund (council tax and business rates) 

losses of upto 75% of irrecoverable losses. 

g. New Homes Bonus to continue for a further year, however there will be no 

new legacy payments and there is a commitment to reform the scheme 

going forward - £2.114M. 

 

Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2025-26 

5.7. The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) has been updated using 

the results of the budget process as a revised baseline and assumption on future 

Government funding. This is included at Appendix B. 

 

5.8. The projections show that by 2025/26 the Council could be facing an annual 

budget deficit of £0.332M. This is a result of the reducing New Homes Bonus 

which is projected to end in 2022/23 and assumption of no further central 

Government funding. The MTFS assumes inflationary growth on our contracts of 

2% and salary inflation at 3%. In addition the MTFS has been updated to reflect 

future property income based on lease renewals. Council Tax is assumed to rise 

Page 4



  

                                                                            

 

by 2% each year. 

 

5.9. A great deal of work has been done to maintain the financial stability of the 

Council and the Chief Finance Officer will start engaging with Members and 

Officers early in the new financial year to develop options for 2022-23 onwards to 

maintain financial stability. 

 

Capital Budget and proposals received 

5.10. The current approved Capital programme is shown at Appendix C and shows a 

forecast spend of £11.831 in 2020-21 and a proposed budget spend of £2.439M 

in 2021-22. The reduction in spend reflects the completion of our two new leisure 

centres at Alton and Whitehill & Bordon. 

 

5.11. A number of capital bids have been received in addition to existing unapproved 

capital bids and these are attached at Appendix D for reference. Detailed 

business cases will be brought forward to Cabinet for approval for the unapproved 

capital bids, following which, if they are approved, they will be added to the 

approved capital programme. 

 

Reserves  

 

5.12. A summary of the reserves position is provided at Appendix E.  

 

5.13. The reserves position is finalised as part of year end accounting. The reserves 

position includes the following: 

 

Revenue reserves: reserves would total an estimated £17.621M at the end of the 

MTFS. Revenue reserves are used to support initiatives identified within the 

revenue budget and will change year on year dependent on when the initiatives 

are approved and spend is authorised. 

Capital reserves: reserves would total an estimated £15.627M at the end of the 

MTFS. Capital reserves are used to support the current approved capital 

programme and will inevitably change year on year as and when new capital 

schemes are approved. 

 

Treasury Management Strategy 

5.14. The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the investment and borrowing 

activities for the Council. The Council’s approach to Treasury Management is in 

Page 5



  

                                                                            

 

accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice which requires a strategy to be 

agreed annually. The latest Treasury Management Strategy can be found at 

Appendix G for approval. 

 

Capital Strategy 

5.15. The Capital Strategy sets out the approach for the approved capital programme, 

providing an overview of the governance process, longer term capital expenditure 

plans and expectations around debt and use of internal borrowing to support 

capital expenditure. The latest Capital Strategy can be found at Appendix H for 

approval. 

6. Options considered 

6.1. The 2021-22 budget has been prepared on the following basis which has guided 

the recommendation. 

 

Council Tax: The budget proposals assume that Council Tax will increase by 2% 

for 2021-22 representing £136.41 at Band D. This also includes a small increase 

to reflect growth in housing numbers year on year. 

 

Grants: The New Homes Bonus is included within the budget and totals £2.1M. 

The updated MTFS projects the grant ceasing after 2022-23. In addition, central 

Government has provided two new un-ringfenced grants for 2021-22 that include 

a Covid grant (£0.490M) and a Lower Services Tier Grant (£0.865M). Both these 

grants are assumed to be one-off 2021-22 grants and have not been carried 

forward into subsequent years. 

 

Retained Business Rates: Since 2013/14, the Council has been allowed to 

retain a portion of business rates. The budget estimate for 2021-22 is based on 

the Council’s final NNDR1 return. Risks around business rates are detailed below. 

 

Fees & Charges: It is a District Council function to approve the budget framework 

and the Council Tax amount annually after other billing authorities have agreed 

their charges and in time for annual tax billing. The Leader or the Cabinet is 

empowered to make changes to the District Council’s fees and charges and to 

determine the Fees & Charges schedule, provided the changes and schedule are 

within the budget framework set annually by the Council. The Full Council 

approves the Fees and Charges schedule annually. Non-statutory Fees and 

Charges have been increased by 2%, where service managers felt it appropriate 

fees and charges have been increased above 2% reflecting cost of delivery. 

Page 6



  

                                                                            

 

Details are provided in Appendix I.  

 

Salary budgets: As previously mentioned the 2021-22 budget assumes an 

overall increase of 3% for pay award, the living wage uplift and those who are 

entitled to pay increment. Pension contributions have been maintained at the level 

set by the Hampshire Pension Fund. The MTFS includes increases of 3% per 

annum in uplifts in salary costs going forward. 

7. Resource Implications 

7.1. Financial Implications – the draft budget reflects the aspirations of the 

organisation for 2021/22 as per the approved Corporate Strategy and has been 

built on the basis for delivering the Council services with the resources required to 

deliver those plans.  

7.2. Human Resources Implications - None 

7.3. Information Governance Implications - None 

7.4. Other resource implications - None 

8. Legal Implications 

8.1. It is a District function to approve the budget framework and the Council Tax 

amount annually. The February Full Council meeting formally exercises this 

power. Overview and Scrutiny are provided the draft budget ahead of February 

Cabinet and Council in order to feed back any recommendations for Cabinet to 

consider within the budget. 

Section 151 Officer comments 

Date: 15 February 2021 

All comments from the CFO (s151) are contained within the reports and appendices in 

particular Appendix F – CFO Statement. 

Page 7



  

                                                                            

 

 

 

9. Risks 

9.1. The 2021/22 budget preparation has identified the following key corporate risks: 

Covid-19 pandemic – during 2020-21 the Council has been faced with the 

additional responsibilities of the pandemic. The Council has had to act quickly to 

respond to the needs of the residents and businesses while ensuring the 

organisation remains in a strong financial position. Going forward, the Council 

remains in response phase to the pandemic with ongoing support to residents 

through the Local Resource Centre and support to businesses through the timely 

distribution of grants during business closures. During 2021-22 uncertainty around 

the impact of Covid will remain and once the pandemic passes there will be 

considerable work on the recovery of the area and likely financial pressures as a 

result of the expected recession. 

Funding – The Government will not proceed with the implementation of the 

Review of Relative Needs and Resources (formerly the Fair Funding Review) and 

75% Business Rates Retention in 2021-22. In order to provide further stability, the 

reset of accumulated business rates growth will not now take place in 2021-22. 

The Government has acknowledged that the reasoning behind this is to allow for 

Councils to focus on meeting the immediate public health challenges posed by 

the Covid-19 pandemic. However, it should be noted that once the pandemic is 

through further decisions on Local Government finance reform will be taken in the 

context of next year’s Spending Review.  

The Government has set out its intention to hold a consultation on the future of 

the New Homes Bonus, with a view to implementing reform in 2022/23 and 

therefore the assumption is that the current scheme will end next year. 

10. Consultation  

10.1. The budgets have been built in consultation with Directors, Heads of Service, 

budget holders and Portfolio Holders.  

Monitoring Officer comments 

Date: 16 February 2021 

No further comments to the legal implications comments above. 

Page 8



  

                                                                            

 

 

10.2. On 23rd and 26th November 2020 Budget review sessions were held with Leader, 

Deputy Leader, Finance Portfolio Holder and relevant Cabinet members to review 

service budgets and consider any potential additional savings.  

10.3. An all member budget briefing took place on 19 January 2021 for Councillors to 

be briefed on the outline draft budget ahead of discussion at Full Council. 

 

10.4. Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviewed the draft budget at their meeting on 

26 January 2021 and were invited to provide any comments for Cabinet to 

consider. 

11. Communication 

11.1. Subject to approval by Full Council the finalised budgets will be published on the 

Council website. 

12. Appendices 

Appendix A – Revenue Budget 

Appendix B – Medium-Term Financial Strategy 

Appendix C – Capital Budget 

Appendix D – Capital bid and unapproved projects 

Appendix E – Reserves  

Appendix F – CFO Statement 

Appendix G – Treasury Management Strategy 

Appendix H – Capital Strategy 

Appendix I – Fees and Charges Schedule 

Appendix J – Analysis of Business Rates Income and Expenditure 2021/22 

Appendix K – Cabinet Recommendation & Council Tax Resolution 

 

 

13. Background papers 

13.1. None 

 

Agreed and signed off by: 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Louisson (16.02.21) 

Director & Section 151 Officer: Lydia Morrison (15.02.21) 

Monitoring Officer: Daniel Toohey (16.02.21) 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 
 

  

2021/22 Draft 
Budget 

  £ (000) 

Director of Corporate Services  
5 Councils Staff and Contract 141  

Executive Office 417  

Head of Legal 873  

Head of Organisational Development 757  

Head of Programmes Redesign 2,855  

Head of Customer Services 2,276  

Head of Strategic Commissioning 3,721  

Head of Finance 1,071  

Head of Commercial Development (38) 

  
Director of Regeneration and Planning  
Head of Neighbourhood Support (598) 

Head of Housing 207  

Head of Planning 1,416  

Head of Community Engagement 1,400  

Head of Property (3,683) 

Project Director Regenco (285) 

Head of Regeneration (North) 822  

  
Net Cost of Services 11,352  

  

Funding 
2021/22 Draft 

Budget 

Parish Precepts 4,436  

Business Rates Retention (2,383) 

Section 31 grant (2,642) 

Levy payment 449  

Business Rates Collection fund (Surplus)/Deficit (652) 

Council Tax Demand on the Collection Fund (inc precepts) (11,448) 

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit (33) 

General Grants  
New Homes Bonus Grant (2,114) 

Other Financing  
Covid 2021-22 allocation (490) 

Lower Tier Services Grant (865) 

  
Contributions to/(from) Earmarked Reserves 4,390  

Contributions to/(from) General Fund Balance  

Balance Deficit/(Surplus) 0  

 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
 

East Hampshire District Council      
General Fund Summary      
2021/22 to 2025/26 Medium Term Financial Strategy     

  

2021/22 
Draft 

Budget 
2022/23 

Estimate 
2023/24 

Estimate 
2024/25 

Estimate 
2025/26 

Estimate 

 

  £ (000) £ (000) £ (000) £ (000) £ (000)  

             

Director of Corporate Services      
 

5 Councils Staff and Contract 141  141  141  141  141   

Executive Office 417  417  417  417  417   

Head of Legal 873  873  873  873  873   

Head of Organisational Development 757  757  757  757  757   

Head of Programmes Redesign 2,855  2,855  2,855  2,855  2,855   

Head of Customer Services 2,276  2,276  2,276  2,276  2,276   

Head of Strategic Commissioning 3,721  3,320  3,018  3,132  3,368   

Head of Finance 1,071  1,071  1,071  1,071  1,071   

Head of Commercial Development (38) (38) (38) (38) (38)  

       

Director of Regeneration and Planning      
 

Head of Neighbourhood Support (598) (598) (598) (598) (598)  

Head of Housing 207  207  207  207  207   

Head of Planning 1,416  1,578  1,416  1,578  1,416   

Head of Community Engagement 1,400  1,562  1,562  1,562  1,562   

Head of Property (3,683) (3,801) (3,365) (4,382) (4,656)  

Project Director Regenco (285) (285) (285) (285) (285)  

Head of Regeneration (North) 822  822  822  822  822   
       

Total Cost of Services 11,352  11,157  11,129  10,388  10,188   
       

Salary inflation (cumulative)   434  880  1,340  1,814   

Other cost inflation (cumulative)  250  500  750  1,000   
       

Net Cost of Services 11,352  11,841  12,509  12,478  13,002  
 

       

Parish Precepts 4,436  4,436  4,436  4,436  4,436   

Business Rates Retention (2,383) (2,384) (2,654) (2,929) (3,209)  

Section 31 grant (2,642) (2,695) (2,749) (2,804) (2,860)  

Levy payment 449  458  468  477  486   

Business Rates Collection fund (Surplus)/Deficit (652) 0  0  0  0   

Council Tax Demand on the Collection Fund 
(inc precepts) (11,448) (11,624) (11,805) (11,990) (12,179) 

 

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit (33)     
 

General Grants      
 

New Homes Bonus Grant (2,114) (920) 0  0  0   

Other Financing      
 

Covid 2021-22 allocation (490)     
 

Lower Tier Services Grant (865)     
 

       

Contributions to/(from) Earmarked Reserves 4,390  656  656  656  656   

Contributions to/(from) General Fund Balance      
 

Balance Deficit/(Surplus) 0  (232) 861  324  332  
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 
 

  YTD  5 YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

East Hants District Council  
Capital Programme Summary 
Project 

2020/21 
Revised 
Forecast 

£'000   
2021/22 

£'000 
2022/23 

£'000 
2023/24 

£'000 
2024/25 

£'000 
2025/26 

£'000 

Housing               

Disabled Facilities Grants* 1,381   1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 

Operational Land and Buildings               

Leisure centre replacement (Alton) 4,583   0 0 0 0 0 

Leisure centre refurbishment (Taro) 355   0 0 0 0 0 

Leisure centre replacement (W&B) 5,438   0 0 0 0 0 

IT Equipment               

Design and System Implementation 
Programme  

0   204 0 0 0 0 

Asset Maintenance Management System 0   35 0 0 0 0 

Building Control - Software 20   0 0 0 0 0 

Vehicles and Equipment               

Environmental Health Vehicle 0   30 0 0 0 0 

Other Capital Expenditure               

CIL  0   tbc 0 0 0 0 

Other s106 funded schemes     tbc 0 0 0 0 

Whitehill Bordon Wayfinding (REFCUS)               

Alton Station Forecourt (REFCUS) 54   789         

Grand Totals 11,831   2,439 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 

                

  YTD  5 YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

East Hants District Council  
Capital Programme Summary 
Project 

2020/21 
Revised 
Forecast 

£'000   
2021/22 

£'000 
2022/23 

£'000 
2023/24 

£'000 
2024/25 

£'000 
2025/26 

£'000 

Projected Capital Financing               

REFCUS (Revenue funded as Capital under 
Statute) 

1,435 
  

2,170 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 

External Grants & Contributions               

Use of Specific Reserves 20   269 0 0 0 0 

Use of Capital Receipts               

Borrowing Requirement 10,376   0 0 0 0 0 

Revenue Funding               

Total Projected Funding 11,831   2,439 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 

 

*Disabled Facilities Grant received annually and subject to change 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D 
 

 

 

EHDC capital bids 2021/22 
  

Previous years Unapproved bids   
  

Project (£000s) 

CRM  136 

Car parking 
                                                                      
34  

Cemetery land 
                                                                    
315  

Pest Control - replacement van 
                                                                      
30  

Dog vehicle 
                                                                      
32  

Electric patrol vehicle 
                                                                      
30  

Merchistoun Hall Redevelopment 
(subject to a business case) 97 

Landlord Cap Ex Investment Property 
                                                                    
890  

Landlord Cap Ex Non-Investment 
Property 

                                                                    
248  

Transformation (Digital) 
                                                                    
256  

Total 2,068                                                      

 

New bids 

Project 2021/22 (£000s) 

Regeneration - Employment Sites   

Regeneration – Health Hub  
 

New bids to be defined and project costs included upon business case 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E 
 
 

East Hampshire District Council  

Analysis of Reserve Balances 2020/21 to 2024/25 

General Fund Earmarked Reserves 
Movements 2020-21 & 2021-22 

Balance 
01/04/2020 

Transfers In Transfers out 
Balance 

31/03/2021 
Transfers In 

Transfers 
out 

Balance 
31/03/2022 

 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  
Asset Management Fund 1,046  0  0  1,046  0 0 1,046   
Externally Funded Reserve 834  229  (197) 866  0 0 866   
Financial Management reserve 687  0  0  687  0 0 687   
Corporate Planning Reserve 4,395  0  0  4,395  0 0 4,395   
Service Management Reserve 1,399  0  0  1,399  0 0 1,399   
Financial Stability reserve 1,277  0  0  1,277  1312 0 2,589   
Property Financial Resilience Reserve 0  500  0  500  1250 0 1,750   
Environmental Initiatives Reserve 0  50  0  50  250 0 300   
Welfare Fund 500  215  0  715  0 0 715   
Regeneration Investment Framework 0  250  0  250  0 0 250   
Community Grant Fund 849  0  (427) 422  1000 (422) 1,000   
Digital Reserve 0  0  0  0  1000 0 1,000   
 

      
 

 
 Total Earmarked Reserves  10,987  1,244  (624) 11,607  4,812  (422) 15,997   

         

General Fund Earmarked Reserves 
Balance 

01/04/2020 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2020/21 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2021/22 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2022/23 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2023/24 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2024/25 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2025/26 

Balance 
31/03/2026 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Asset Management Fund 1,046  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,046  

Externally Funded Reserve 834  32  0  0  0  0  0  866  

Financial Management reserve 687  0  0  0  0  0  0  687  

Corporate Planning Reserve 4,395  0  0  0  0  0  0  4,395  

Service Management Reserve 1,399  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,399  

Financial Stability reserve 1,277  0  1,312  656  656  656  656  5,213  

Property Financial Resilience Reserve 0  500  1,250  0  0  0  0  1,750  

Environmental Initiatives Reserve 0  50  250  0  0  0  0  300  

Welfare Fund 500  215  0  0  0  0  0  715  

P
age 19



Appendix E 
 

Regeneration Investment Framework 0  250  0  0  0  0  0  250  

Community Grant Fund 849  (427) 578  (333) (333) (334) 0  0  

Digital Strategy Reserve 0  0  1,000  0  0  0  0  1,000  
 

        
 Total Earmarked Reserves  10,987  620  4,390  323  323  322  656  17,621  

         

   0 0 0 0 0  

General Fund 
Balance 

01/04/2020 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2020/21 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2021/22 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2022/23 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2023/24 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2024/25 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2025/26 

Balance 
31/03/2026 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000 

C/f  3,500  3,500  3,500  3,500  3,500  3,500   

General Fund 3,500   0  0  0  0  0  3,500  

         

         
Total 3,500  0  3,500  3,500  3,500  3,500  3,500  3,500  

         

         

Capital Reserves 
Balance 

01/04/2020 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2020/21 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2021/22 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2022/23 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2023/24 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2024/25 

Estimated 
Movements 
in Reserves 

2025/26 

Balance 
31/03/2026 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 4,625  582  0  0  0  0  0  5,207  

Capital Grants & Unapplied Contributions 7,533  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,533  

Community Infrastructure Levy 2,887  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,887  

 Total Earmarked Reserves  15,045  582  0  0  0  0  0  15,627  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 20



Appendix F 
 

 

STATEMENT ON THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET PROPOSALS BY THE CHIEF 

FINANCE OFFICER 

 

1. Background 

  

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance 

Officers to report to their authorities about the robustness of estimates and the 

adequacy of reserves when determining their precepts. Authorities are 

required to consider their Chief Finance Officer’s report when setting 

precepts.  

 

2. Summary Opinion  

 

Having considered and taken into consideration the issues detailed within the 

report, I am able to give a positive opinion on the robustness of the estimates 

and the adequacy of financial reserves for 2021/22.  

 

This opinion is based on the draft budget proposals presented to Cabinet in 

February 2021. Should any of the assumptions currently included within the 

proposals change substantially then this opinion will require review. 

 

3. Robustness of the Estimates  

 

Estimates Procedures and Processes  

In providing a positive opinion on the robustness of the Estimates and Council 

Tax procedures I have relied on the assumptions and factors as detailed 

within the Budget report. These include well established and tested process 

and procedures and in this financial year a further layer of challenge and risk 

analysis has been introduced with the Challenge Boards. I can therefore 

confirm that I am satisfied that the Council has robust procedures in place.  

These procedures will be reviewed regularly, in particular in light of the 

continuing public sector spending constraints.  

 

4. Determination of the level of resources available.  

 

Confirmation of central Government funding as follows: 

 New Homes Bonus: £2.1M 

 Lower Services Tier Grant: £0.865M 

 Covid-19 Grant: £0.490M 

 

5. Affordability of Spending Plans  

 

In assessing this issue the following factors have been taken into account:  

Page 21



Appendix F 
 

 

 The level of Council Tax considered acceptable both locally and 

nationally – the Government has agreed Councils can uplift Council 

Tax by the higher of 2% or £5 and the Cabinet is making the 

recommendation for 2021/22 of implementing a 2% uplift. 

 The budget process for 2021/22 has been based on council strategic 

priorities. 

 

6. Advice on the level of reserves  

 

The estimated level of the General Fund Reserve at March 2022 is £3.5M. 

The General Reserve is set aside to smooth the impact of unexpected events 

and emergencies. The Council has robust monitoring and reporting in place 

and is key to managing any future financial risk which may arise.  

 

An analysis of earmarked reserves held by the Council has shown that the 

level currently held in these reserves remains adequate to meet the 

commitments and forecast expenditure. Additional funding has been added to 

the Financial Stability Reserve. This reserve is specifically to smooth the 

impact on the revenue account for any unforeseen expenditure. It also holds 

funds established for future Covid response and recovery. 

 

7. Key Budget Risks  

 

There are a number of risks which have been highlighted within the main 

report, the majority of these are associated with cost reductions and efficiency 

savings by departments. Robust monitoring and reporting will help to mitigate 

any risk of failing to deliver these financial targets 

Page 22



Appendix G 

 

East Hampshire District Council 
 

Treasury Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Strategy and Annual Investment Strategy 

 
1. The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 
 
1.1 The Treasury Management and Investment Strategy has been set in 

accordance with the CIPFA Prudential and Treasury Management Codes 
2017.  The code was updated to respond to an increase in the level of 
Commercial investment by Local Authorities and concerns raised that 
Councils should define risk appetite and assess the risks and rewards of 
significant investments on a long-term basis, rather than the three to five-year 
time frames that were typically used for decision making. 

 
1.2 The Council is required to approve a Treasury Management Strategy which 

establishes the investment and borrowing activities for the Council. The 
Council’s approach to Treasury Management is in accordance with the Cipfa 
Code of Practice, which requires a three year strategy to be agreed annually.   

 
1.3 The Prudential Code for Capital requires the Council to set Prudential 

Indicators for Treasury Management and Capital Expenditure.  These are 
linked to the Strategy and are set out at the end of this document.  

 
1.4 The Prudential Code expresses concern that commercial activities should be 

proportional to a local authority’s overall resources and that Local authorities 
should also engage appropriate expertise to ensure that members are well-
informed before making such investment decisions. 

 
1.5 The Council is also required to make an annual Policy statement on making 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for borrowing, together with the 
consideration of prudent provision in future financial years.  

 
1.6 The Council is required to produce an annual Capital strategy which should 

specifically set out parameters around Investment. 
 
1.7 The Council delegates responsibility for the monitoring and scrutiny of 

treasury activity to the Audit Committee, and delegates responsibility for 
implementing and administering the strategies, policy and procedures to the 
Chief Finance Officer.  

 
2. Treasury Management Policy 2021/22 
  
2.1 If it is financially prudent the Council will consider investments in regeneration. 

If borrowing is required this will be considered against the PWLB rules 
following the recent consultation and guidance issued at end of 2020. If 
borrowing is not required the Council will make the use of the capital receipts 
reserve to fund projects subject to business case.  

 

Page 23



Appendix G 

 

2.2  Forecasts are that the Bank of England is to remain at 0.1% for the next three 
years and it is likely that borrowing rates will also remain low, with small 
gradual increases over the next three years. Investment rates are likely to be 
reflective of bank rates and therefore will remain at ultra-low levels. The global 
pandemic is the major factor which will impact on the kind of recovery that is 
achieved.  
 

2.3 Following the PWLB consultation and issuance of guidance in late 2020 
borrowing rates for general fund have been reduced back by 1% with a 25 
year loan at 1.70%. However, the rules around PWLB now require 
confirmation that borrowing is not for the purpose of buying investment assets 
purely for yield. 

 
Economic Factors 
 
2.6 Factors that influence the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy include 

the Council’s overall level of resources, medium term spending plans and the 
need to finance the future cost of services. It is also influenced by the state of 
the economy in general, the outlook for interest rates and the credit risk 
environment. 

 
2.7 The Treasury strategy is linked to the Council’s medium term financial plans, 

and are reflected in a net interest cost or yield in the Council’s budget. The net 
cost/yield estimates are updated regularly through the budget setting process 
and in year forecasting. 

 
2.8 The Council’s investment strategy gives scope to invest in approved 

instruments outlined in the approved lending/borrowing list (Schedule 3), but 
investments in banks and building societies are limited to high quality 
counterparties only. 

 
Prudential Indicators 
 
2.9 The Prudential Indicators were established as part of the Local Government 

Act 2003 through the Prudential Code. The Code requires the Council to 
produce indicators to demonstrate that capital financing is prudent, 
sustainable and affordable. Local authorities must undertake financial 
planning for periods longer than the three years required for prudential and 
treasury indicators. The Capital Programme provides the basis for this.  The 
indicators are set out at the end of this document. 

 
MRP Policy 
 
2.10 The Council is required to calculate an amount in relation to its borrowing, and 

charge this amount as Minimum Revenue Provision to its Income & 
Expenditure Account in respect of borrowing repayment. The Policy is set out 
at Schedule 4 to the Treasury Management Strategy. 

 
 
 

Page 24



Appendix G 

 

Officer Approval Limits 
 
2.11 The power to approve the acquisition of properties is delegated to the Cabinet 

in consultation with the Section 151 Officer. 
 

Risk Management 
 
2.12 Minimisation and mitigation of risk is a key aspect of treasury management 

activity. Property investment decisions are subject to detailed business cases 
and lending and investment lists are updated during the financial year. As the 
Council moves towards a net borrowing position, interest rate exposure is an 
emerging risk and the timing of any move from short to long term borrowing is 
closely monitored. 

 
2.13  The Finance Team carry out their duties in accordance with internal controls 

to ensure any day to day investment decisions are made in accordance with 
the Treasury Management Strategy. 

 
2.14 The CFO reports on Treasury activity as part of the monthly financial 

monitoring. 
 
2.15 The Audit Committee will be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury 

Management activity & practices. 

Page 25



Appendix G 

 

SCHEDULE 1 – TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
1. The Authority has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 
2017 Edition (the CIPFA Code), which requires the Authority to approve a 
treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year. In addition, 
the Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG) issued revised 
Guidance on Local Authority Investments in February 2018 that requires the 
Authority to approve an investment strategy before the start of each financial 
year. 
 

2. This report fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 
2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the CLG Guidance. The 
Authority is proposing to borrow substantial sums of money and, as a result, may 
be exposed to financial risks arising from changing interest rates. 

 
3. The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are therefore central 

to the Authority’s treasury management strategy. 
 

East Hampshire District Council’s context 
 

4. East Hampshire District Council anticipates that at 31st March 2021, £18.4M will 
be invested in short-term accounts. There is external borrowing in place of 
£126M to fund capital expenditure on Leisure Centres and strategic property 
investment. 
 

5. The underlying need to borrow is measured by the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR). The CFR is anticipated to remain at the current level over 
the period of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). 

 
Borrowing Strategy 

 
6. The Council will adopt a flexible approach to borrowing in consultation with 

Treasury Management advisors, and will keep under review the following 
borrowing sources: 

 

 Internal borrowing (borrowing against future revenue budgets) 

 PWLB  

 Other Local Authorities 

 Finance Leasing 

 Brokers for short term financing 
 
7. Exposure to short dated/variable rate borrowing will be reviewed by reference to 

the difference between variable rate and longer term borrowing costs. A 
significant change in this difference will trigger a review of borrowing strategy to 
determine whether a switch to longer term rates is made or whether exposure to 
short term rates is maintained. 
 

8. Capital Finance can also be raised through other debt liabilities, including 
Finance Leases, Sale & Leaseback, or LGA Bonds. Any decision to raise finance 

Page 26



Appendix G 

 

through these methods will be subject to appraisal and a separate report to 
Cabinet. 

 
9. The Council may take advantage of debt rescheduling (the repayment of loans 

before maturity to allow replacement with new loans) where it is expected to 
create a cost saving or significantly reduce interest rate risk to the Council. 

 
Investment Strategy 

 
10. The Council’s overriding objective in relation to the investment of cash is the 

security of the capital invested, followed by the liquidity of investment. The 
Council aims to maximise yield given these parameters. 
 

11. Investments are categorised as specified or non-specified investments. Specified 
investments are sterling denominated investments maturing under 1 year, and 
non-specified investments are effectively anything else. 

 
12. The CFO has discretion to make investments outside of the Lending list on the 

advice of appropriate Treasury Advisors. Institutions may be added or removed 
from the list if credit ratings improve or deteriorate below the thresholds outlined 
on the List. 

 
13. Overnight funds are held in an overnight fund provided by the Council’s bank. 

Consideration will be given to Money Market Funds in 2021/22 as an alternative 
to the overnight account, and may be utilised if the CFO is satisfied with the level 
of risk 

 
14. The Council will arrange short term investments through brokers, in order to 

ensure transactional security and to promote competition to enhance returns.  
The approved brokers are:  

 

 ICAP Europe Ltd  

 Prebon Marshall Yamane UK Ltd 

 Tradition UK 

 RP Martin 
 
Current Treasury Portfolio  
 
15. The Council adopted a policy in previous strategies to transfer long term cash 

investments into property, building a balanced portfolio which balances returns 
with the Council’s duty to maintain appropriate security and liquidity of public 
monies. Investment properties are revalued on an annual basis which may 
change the value reported.  The value of these property investments at 31 March 
2020 is: 
 

Value as at 
31/03/2019 

Additions 
Value as at 
31/03/2020 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

115,326 31,189 135,196 

 

Page 27



Appendix G 

 

 
Interest Rate Forecasts 

 
16. The Council formulates a view on interest rates as part of the budget setting 

process. This view is formulated on the basis of advice from Treasury 
Management advisors (Link Asset Services) and Bank of England forecasts. The 
current view is that interest rates are likely to remain at the current level of 0.1% 
for the next three years. There remains uncertainty around the pandemic and the 
impact and recovery over the next few years will be kept under review. 
 

17. It is important to note that although the base rate could change, the rates that we 
can get on our investments are based on the London Interbank Offer rate, which 
fluctuates depending on other market factors.  This explains the differing rates of 
return of our current investment portfolio. 

 
Creditworthiness Policy 

 
18. The Council monitors the creditworthiness of the counterparties used.  The 

Council’s lending list contains only counterparties of high credit quality.  Credit 
quality is assessed through the size of the asset base of the counterparty, and 
the credit ratings awarded by independent credit rating agencies such as Fitch. 
 

19. The asset base of counterparties is monitored on an annual basis when the 
Statement of Accounts for each counterparty is issued.  Credit ratings are 
regularly monitored and are verified prior to investments being made. 

 
20. Credit ratings of counterparties are available from credit agencies (Fitch, 

Standard & Poor, and Moody’s).  Advice on the credit worthiness of 
counterparties is also obtained from the Council’s Treasury advisors. 
 

21. If a counterparty on the current lending list is found to be of insufficient credit 
quality, the Council will not engage with that counterparty until it is satisfied that 
credit quality has improved.  Treasury officers continue to monitor counterparties 
that are not currently on the lending list, and will add counterparties of high credit 
quality to the lending list in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance. 

 
22. Sole reliance will not be placed on credit ratings. The Council will continue to 

monitor reports in the press, market data and information on government support 
when reviewing credit worthiness. All counterparties on the long-term lending list 
are also covered by the government’s Credit Guarantee Scheme. 

 
23. All Long Term Investments will be carried out in consultation with the Finance 

Portfolio Holder and the S151 Officer. 
 
Treasury Limits and Prudential Indicators 2021/22 to 2024/25 

 
24. The revised CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the 

Prudential Code for Capital Finance, in accordance with Section 3 of the Local 
Government Act 2003, require the Council to determine and review the level of 
borrowing that it can afford. 

Page 28



Appendix G 

 

 
25. The Codes require a number of indicators to be formally set, on a rolling basis for 

the following three years.  The Council must have regard to the following when 
setting these indicators: 

 

 Service Objectives 

 Stewardship of Assets 

 Value for Money 

 Prudence and Sustainability 

 Affordability and Practicality 
 

26. The purpose of these indicators is to ensure that total capital investments and, in 
particular, the effect of these investments on the Council Tax level is ‘acceptable’. 
 

27. The Prudential Indicators set for 2021/22 are shown in Schedule 2 below. An 
explanation is provided for each indicator 

 
 

 
 
 
. 

Page 29



Appendix G 

 

 
SCHEDULE 2  

 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

 
1. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 
The actual ratio for 2020/21 and proposed budget ratio for 2021/22 and estimated 
ratios for 2021/22 to 2025/26 are provided below. 
 

  
2020/21 
Current 
Budget 

2021/22 
Forecast 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Interest Payable 2,122  2,695  2,748  2,802  2,858  

Interest 
Receivable 

(72) (72) (72) (72) (72) 

Investment 
Income  

(10,172) (8,268) (8,107) (7,460) (8,478) 

MRP (include 
finance leases) 

2,127  1,757   1,828 2,121 2,121  

TOTAL (5,995) (3,888) (3,603) (2,609) (3,571) 

            

NNDR 1,306  5,228 4,621 4,935  5,583  

Collection Fund 6,949  7,012  7,188  7,369  7,554  

Other non-
ringfenced grants 

0  1,355  0  0  0  

New Homes 
Bonus Grant 

3,345  2,114  920  0  0  

TOTAL 11,600  15,709  12,729  12,304  13,137 

Ratio as a 
Percentage 

(0.51) (0.25) (0.28) (0.21) (0.27) 

 

The ratio is calculated by comparing the financing cost of all borrowing with the 
revenue stream through Council Tax, general grants and Retained Business Rates.  
 
The cost of finance associated with this borrowing is more than covered by the 
revenues attached to investment income.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



Appendix G 

 

 
 

2. Approved Capital Expenditure 
 
The Capital Expenditure estimates are summarised below.  The estimates come 
from approved schemes in the Capital Budget, which is to be agreed by Council in 
February 2021.  
 

Capital 
Expenditure 

2020/21 
Forecast 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Capital 
Expenditure 

11,831 2,439 1,381 1,381 1,381 

Capital Financing 1,455 2,439 1,381 1,381 1,381 

Borrowing 
Requirement 

10,376 - - - - 

 
 

3. Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing 
 
The below table demonstrates the value of principle repayments repayable. 
 

  
  

31/03/2020 
Actual 

£’000 

Under 12 months 1,776 

12 months to 2 years 1,787 

2 years to 5 years 5,621 

5 years to 10 years 35,361 

Greater than 10 years 81,204 

 
 

 4. The Capital Financing Requirement 
 
The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is used to assist in deciding whether 
capital expenditure is affordable, by measuring the underlying need to borrow.  The 
indicator is calculated by matching fixed assets and projected capital expenditure to 
capital resources applied.  The difference between the two, if positive, represents 
total capital expenditure financed by borrowing. The definition of unfinanced capital 
expenditure includes finance leases and PFI arrangements.  Long Term borrowing 
should not, except in the short term, exceed the CFR. 
 

Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 
(CFR) 

2019/20 
Outturn 

2020/21 
Budget  

2021/22 
Budget 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

Opening CFR 159,252 159,252 159,252 159,252 159,252 159,252 

Page 31



Appendix G 

 

Unfinanced 
Capital 
Expenditure 

- - -   -   -   -   

MRP (1,706) (2,127) (1,757) (1,828) (2,121) (2,121) 

Closing CFR 157,546 157,125 157,495 157,424 157,131 157,131 

Long Term 
Borrowing 

125,749 125,749 125,749 125,749 125,749 125,749 

Over/(Under) 
Borrowing 

(31,797) (31,376) (32,016) (31,675) (31,382) (31,382) 

 
The Council has two leases that were reclassified as finance leases under 
International Financial Reporting Standards in 2010, where previously they had no 
impact on the CFR. The Finance Lease Liability is being reduced through budgeted 
lease repayments and as a result there is no requirement to borrow to meet this 
liability. 
 
5. Authorised Limit for External Debt 
 
To ensure good cashflow management, there is occasionally a need to borrow in the 
short term. Authority for any such borrowing is delegated to the S151 Officer. There 
are some circumstances where long term borrowing to support the Capital 
Programme is required to finance major capital projects or investment property 
purchases. The long-term limits set in this report are based on the projected Capital 
Financing requirement over the period of the Medium Term strategy and will be the 
maximum permissible amount of total borrowing. Other Long-Term Liabilities are 
deposits held by the Council and relate to the Woolmer industrial estate. 
 

  
2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24  2024/25  

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Borrowing 
Authorised Limit 

225,000 225,000 225,000 225,000 225,000 

Other Long-Term 
Liabilities 

5,341 5,330 5,319 5,308 5,297 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



Appendix G 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS 
 
1. Operational Boundary for External Debt 
 
The purpose of this indicator is to serve as a warning that the authorised limit for 
external debt is close.  It has been set at £3M below the authorised limit. 
 

  
2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24  2024/25  

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Borrowing 
Operational Limit 
(Up to 1 Yr) 

222,000 222,000 222,000 222,000 222,000 

Other Long-Term 
Liabilities 

5,341 5,330 5,319 5,308 5,297 

 
 
2. Interest Rate Exposures 
 
Setting upper limits for variable and fixed interest rates provides a range in which the 
authority manages exposure to fixed and variable interest rates.  Although fixed rates 
bring security to long term returns, variable rate investments can give the flexibility to 
maximise returns when interest rates are expected to increase.  The indicators set 
will allow this flexibility. 
 
Upper Limit for Fixed Rate Exposure 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 
Upper Limit for Variable Rate Exposure 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 
 
3. Total Principal Sums invested 
 
The Prudential Code requires authorities to establish long term limits on principal 
sums invested in long term investments.  The purpose of this indicator is to ensure 
that a good maturity profile of investments is maintained. 
 

Term of Investment 
Total 
Value 
£'000 

Within 1 Years 18,400 

Between 1 and 2 Years 0 

2+ Years 0 

 

Page 33



Appendix G 

 

Clearing Banks & 
Subsidiaries 

Fitch Rating 

ST LT 

Barclays Bank F1 A+ 

HSBC F1+ AA- 

Lloyds Bank F1 A+ 

Royal Bank of 
Scotland 

F1 A+ 

Nat West Bank F1 A+ 

   

   

Other UK Banks   

Santander UK plc F1 A+ 
Close Brothers Ltd F1 A 
Abbey National 
Treasury 
Services Plc 

F1 A 

Goldman Sachs 
Group 

F1 A 

   

Local Authorities   

Central 
Government  

  

 

Building Societies (Assets 
over £1bn) 

Ratin
g by 
asset 
size 

Fitch Rating 

ST LT 

Nationwide 1 F1 A 

Yorkshire 2 F1 A- 

Coventry 3 F1 A 

Skipton 4 F1 A- 

Leeds 5 F1 A- 

Principality 6 F2 BBB+ 

West Bromwich 7 - - 

Newcastle 8 B BB+ 

Nottingham 9 - - 
Progressive 10 - - 

Cumberland 11 - - 

National Counties 12 - - 

Saffron 13 - - 

Cambridge 14 - - 

 

 

SCHEDULE 3 – BORROWING AND LENDING LIST 2021-22 
 
Fitch Ratings 
 
Short Term: Investments will only be made in institutions which, if rated, are rated 
F3 or above. Building Societies not rated are included on the basis of asset size, of a 
minimum of £500m. 
 
Long Term: Investments will only be made in institutions which, if rated, are rated at 
BBB+ or above. Building Societies that are not rated are included on the basis of 
asset size, of a minimum of £1bn. 
 
Long Term Investments maximum investment not to exceed £5M for a maximum 
term of 5 years; all investments to be carried out in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Finance. 

Page 34



 

Short Term Lending list 
 

For investments not exceeding 364 days: 

 Maximum Investment: £3,000,000 

 Maximum duration: 364 days. 
 

 
 
 

 
Long Term Borrowing  

 
Long term borrowing is for capital projects. Long term borrowing will be from PWLB, UK 
Sterling based institutions and to include Local Authorities 

 
Short Term Borrowing 

 
Short term borrowing is for temporary cash shortfalls. Short term borrowing will be from 
UK Sterling based institutions, including Local Authorities. Short term borrowing will not 
exceed 364 days 

Clearing Banks & 
Subsidiaries 

Fitch Rating 

ST LT 

Barclays Bank F1 A+ 

HSBC F1+ AA- 

HSBC Private 
Bank 

- - 

Lloyds Bank F1 A+ 

Royal Bank of 
Scotland 

F1 A+ 

Nat West Bank F1 A+ 

   

Other UK Banks   

Santander UK plc F1 A+ 
Clydesdale Bank F2 BBB+ 

Close Brothers Ltd F1 A 

Abbey National 
Treasury 
Services Plc 

F1 A 

   

Local Authorities   

Central 
Government 

  

Building Societies (Assets 
over £500m) 

Rating 
by 

asset 
size 

Fitch Rating 

ST LT 

Nationwide 1 F1 A 

Yorkshire 2 F1 A- 

Coventry 3 F1 A 

Skipton 4 F1 A- 

Leeds 5 F1 A- 

Principality 6 F2 BBB+ 

West Bromwich 7 - - 

Newcastle 8 B BB+ 

Nottingham 9 - - 
Progressive 10 - - 

Cumberland 11 - - 

National Counties 12 - - 

Saffron 13 - - 

Cambridge 14 - - 
Monmouthshire 15 - - 
Leek United 16 - - 
Furness 17 - - 
Newbury 18 - - 
Hinckley and Rugby 19 - - 
Ipswich 20 - - 
Darlington 21 - - 

Page 35



 

Schedule 4 – Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 2021/22 

 
MRP on Finance Leased assets prior to 2017 
 
The Council holds assets which are financed through a Finance Lease, as defined by 
International Financial Reporting standards. Where assets are financed in this way, MRP is 
charged over the life of the asset or, where this is not practical, over the life of the lease. 

 
Prudential Code debt incurred in the year 2019/20 and onwards in relation to income 
generating property acquisitions 

 
The Council will calculate the amounts for MRP for 2019/20 by applying an annuity formula 
incorporating the Bank of England forecast rate for inflation , commensurate in duration to the 
estimated life of the item purchased/built to the apportionment of the value attributed to each 
financial year’s opening CFR in relation to such income generating capital expenditure where 
the item purchased/built is expected to have a life of up to 50 years or more. 
 
Prudential Code debt incurred in the year 2017 onwards in relation to Leisure Centres 
and other operational assets 
 
The Council will apply the following methodology for MRP in relation to the Leisure Centre 
build: 
 
- Annuity method (Asset life) - Annuity method, which works on the basis of a mortgage 

type repayment extended over the lifecycle of the asset.  MRP Commencement on 
operational properties will be postponed until the financial year after asset becomes 
operational. 

 
- Borrowing where timing differences arise between spend and future capital receipts; 

MRP will be charged in the year in which capital receipts are received 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 36



Appendix H 
 

 

Capital Strategy 
 

East Hampshire District Council 

2021/22 to 2025/26 

Page 37



Appendix H 
 

1.0 Introduction 

 

1.1 The Capital Strategy is a key policy document for the Council and provides 

guidance on the Capital Programme and the use of capital resources and 

Asset Management Plans. The strategy reflects the links to other Council 

plans, in particular the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). The Capital 

Strategy is written following guidance included in the Prudential Code (2018) 

and is required to be approved by Full Council. 

 

1.2 The objectives of the Capital Strategy are to: 

• Provide an overview of the governance process for approval and 

monitoring of capital expenditure; 

• Provide a longer-term view of capital expenditure plans; 

• Provide an overview of asset management planning; 

• Provide expectations around debt and use of internal borrowing to 

support capital expenditure; 

• Define the authority’s approach to commercial activities including due 

diligence and risk appetite; 

• Defines the available knowledge and skills to the authority in relation to 

capital investment activities. 

 
1.3 Capital spending is strictly defined and is principally incurred in buying, 

constructing or improving physical assets such as buildings, land and 

vehicles, plant and machinery. It also includes grants and advances to be 

used for capital purposes. The Council’s policy on capitalisation is included in 

the Accounting Policies of the Statement of Accounts. The policy states that 

only assets with a value over £15,000 will be capitalised and therefore 

expenditure under these limits is deemed to be a revenue cost. 

 

Evaluation and Monitoring of Capital projects 

 
1.4 The Council has a Strategy Projects Board whose purpose is: 

 

• to act as the Corporate Board for strategic//key corporate projects 

contributing to the delivery of the Corporate Strategy; 

• to monitor the progress of the council’s strategic/key corporate 

projects; including governance arrangements; 

• to review and consider resourcing issues on project.

Page 38



Appendix H 
 

 
 

1.5 The function of the board is to be accountable for the success of the key projects 

which contribute to the delivery of the Corporate Strategy. A “Strategic Project 

(also known as a “Key Corporate Project”) is defined as – any project which 

Executive Board have deemed to require strategic oversight and is tracked on the 

“Strategic Project” list maintained by the Board. 

 
1.6 Project Board will be responsible for ‘live’ projects. Any Corporate Project that 

requires approval will go through the usual mechanism of Executive Board – 

Cabinet – and/or Council. Once a Corporate Project is approved (including funds) 

then a decision will be made by Executive Board on whether the project should be 

managed through Project Board. 

 

1.7 In line with Prince-2 management standards, the Strategic Project Board will: 

 

• Consider recommendations from the projects and provide strategic 

oversight to ensure continued fit with the business strategy for the 

Council 

• Approve major plans and any major changes on key projects 

including invocation of Exception status where projects are not 

progressing to plan 

• Allocate corporate funding and resources to key projects 

• Ensure corporate-wide communication relating to key projects is 

relevant and timely. 

• Ensure appropriate governance and project assurance is in 

place for key projects and risks are being appropriately 

monitored and escalated where necessary. 

 

1.8 The Strategic Project Board will link with the project management structures for 

each key project. The Business Solutions Unit will ensure appropriate and 

complementary project governance structures are in place, in line with Prince-2 

management standards, to avoid confusion regarding roles and responsibilities. 

Prince 2-based templates for projects and programmes will be the standard 

reporting tools for all projects. 

 

1.9 The Strategic Project Board will comprise of Senior Leaders within the 

organisation including Chief Executive, Director of Corporate Services (s151), 

Director of Regeneration & Place and Head of Programmes, Redesign & Quality.  

Page 39



Appendix H 
 

 
 Current Asset Portfolio 

 
1.10 The Council holds assets split across three categories as detailed below: 

 

 Investment Property (Non-Operational) 

These assets include Industrial Estates, land held for capital 

appreciation and rental income. 

 
 Property, Plant & Equipment 

These are operational properties, land, vehicles, 

infrastructure and community assets that are used to deliver 

council services and include Council 

 

 Assets Under Construction  

These are assets that are in the course of construction but have 

not yet been completed. 

 

1.11 The Council holds an investment portfolio that supports both its 

operational activities and non-operational activities from which it receives 

an element of rental income. For the year ended 31 March 2020 the value 

of investment property rental income £9.531M which represents a gross 

yield of 7.04% on the value of the investment property assets held. 

 

 

 
Asset Category 

 
Valuation 

31/03/20 

£000 

 
Rental 

Income 

£000 

 

 

Investment Property 

Property Plant and Equipment 

Assets Under Construction 

135,196 

50,166 

6,941 

9,531 

TOTAL 192,303  

 
2.0 Financial Principles supporting the Capital Strategy 

 

2.1 Capital expenditure is to be incurred in line with Financial Procedure 

Rules as follows: 

 

• The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for ensuring that a 

capital programme is prepared for consideration by the 

Page 40



Appendix H 
 

Cabinet before submission to Full Council. New Capital 

projects should be identified by Heads of Service to the 

Chief Finance Officer, as part of the Budget Planning 

Process, for inclusion in the Capital Programme. 

 

• Capital schemes may only be committed after: 

o An assessment in the agreed standard format including 

an estimate of the associated revenue expenditure and 

income has been approved by the Cabinet; and 

o Appropriate finance has been made available. 

 

• Where it appears that any scheme in the capital programme 

will be overspent by a sum of £50,000 or more a report shall 

be made to the Cabinet. The Chief Finance Officer will advise 

the Cabinet whether or how requests for additional capital 

finance can be achieved within the overall capital programme. 

The Chief Finance Officer is authorised to approve virements 

within the capital programme as outlined in Standing Order 

64. 

2.2 The key principles to be applied to the Capital Strategy are set out below: 
 

• Capital resources are held corporately and are allocated 

according to the priorities set out in the Corporate Strategy 

(i.e. there is no automatic ring-fencing of resources for 

specific purposes); 

• Capital receipts will be allocated in accordance with Council 

priorities; 

• The Council will seek to maximise the use of grants and 

external funding; 

• The Council is committed to deliver capital investment with 

partners to maximise benefits where this fits with Council 

priorities; 

• Redirection of capital resources from one project to another 

will be contained within existing budgets, unless increases 

can be justified through the budget process; 

• Capital budgets are generally cash-limited i.e. no provision 

is made for inflation which effectively means that over time 

there is a real reduction in the value of resources allocated 

to specific capital projects; 

• Review of capital financing decisions which will likely have a 

revenue budget impact due to lack of capital resources (E.g. 

through reprofiling of capital receipts and borrowing); 

Page 41



Appendix H 
 

• Revisit the Asset Management Plan to see if any asset can be 

sold; 

• In order to reduce the exposure of the council to a 

borrowing requirement the following steps should 

continue to be examined: 

o Fundamental review of existing capital programme to 

ensure that schemes are still required and are 

accurate; 

o Maximisation of the use of grants and 

contributions from external sources; 

o Providing a recurring revenue contribution to 

the capital programme; 

o Invest to save schemes that can repay 

the capital investment over a period of 

time. 

 
Capital Investment Assumptions: 

 The current capital programme uses a combination of financing 

including capital receipts, grants & contributions, reserves and 

borrowing. 

 

2.3 The Corporate Strategy forms part of the Policy and Budgetary 

Framework for the Council. These frameworks work together to create the 

strategic framework. 

2.4 The Capital Strategy must both support and inform the Council’s vision for 

the East Hampshire area and the strategic direction set out in the 

Corporate Strategy. This is to enable resources to be matched against the 

agreed priorities and any other supporting needs. 

2.5 The Capital Strategy takes account of other Council Plans and Strategies 

of the Council, which have a potential impact on the use of resources by 

the Council. Particularly consideration is given to the following key 

strategies: 

 
• The Medium Term Financial Strategy, which provides 

information on the proposed revenue budget and considerations 

that will impact on future budgets. 

• The Treasury Management Strategy, Investment Strategy and 

Minimum Revenue Provision Strategy, which sets out the 

assumptions for financing requirements and interest rates and 

Page 42



Appendix H 
 

their effect on the revenue budget. 

• Local Plan/Local Development Framework. 

• There are also a number of other strategies, which set out policy 
direction for other key Council priorities. 

 

3.0 Capital Expenditure 

 

 Capital Investment Priorities 

 

3.1 The Capital Strategy needs to ensure that any capital investment 

decisions are both affordable and achieve the priorities as set out in the 

East Hants Corporate Strategy; any such investment in assets is likely to 

have implications on the revenue budget. 

 

3.2 The Capital Strategy must therefore recognise the implications of capital 

investment decisions and ensure that they are in line with Council 

priorities and financing requirements are robustly evaluated and 

understood. 

 

3.3 All business cases will be subject to the usual due diligence to ensure that 

they afford the best value for money for the Council, align with its core 

priorities and do not expose the Council to unnecessary risk that could put 

future delivery of services in jeopardy. 

 

 Capital Expenditure Forecasts 

 
3.4 The Council’s forecasts for the period 2021/22 to 2025/26 are shown 

below. Note that this does not include new capital bids for 2021/22 

onwards which are still subject to approval. 

 

 

Page 43



Appendix H 
 

East Hants District Council 

Capital Programme Summary

Project

2020/21 

Revised 

Forecast 

£'000

2021/22 

£'000

2022/23 

£'000

2023/24 

£'000

2024/25 

£'000

2025/26 

£'000

Housing

Disabled Facilities Grants 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381

Operational Land and Buildings

Leisure centre replacement (Alton) 4,583 - - - - -

Leisure centre refurbishment (Taro) 355 - - - - -

Leisure centre replacement (W&B) 5,438 - - - - -

IT Equipment

Design and System Implementation 

Programme 
- 204 - - - -

Asset Maintenance Management System - 35 - - - -

Building Control - Software 20 - - - - -

Vehicles and Equipment

Environmental Health Vehicle - 30 - - - -

Other Capital Expenditure

CIL - tbc - - - -

Other s106 funded schemes tbc - - - -

Whitehill Bordon Wayfinding (REFCUS)

Alton Station Forecourt (REFCUS) 54 789

Grand Totals 11,831 2,439 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381

YTD 5 YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Page 44



Appendix H 
 

  

Current Resource Forecasts 

 

3.5 The Council’s capital programme will be financed (or paid for) through a 

variety of sources and the Chief Finance Officer will make 

recommendations on the most effective way of financing the Capital 

programme to optimize the overall use of resources. The table below 

shows the proposed capital financing at this time. 

 

 

Capital grants 

3.6 The Council receives one primary capital grant from central Government 

to support its role in providing Disabled Facilities Grants; for 2021/22 the 

Council has been allocated £1.381M. There have been changes to the 

way the grant is now distributed with the funding being provided to the 

County Council as the Better Care provider who then allocate funding to 

the District Councils. Future year’s allocations may therefore be subject to 

change as part of this change in procedure. 

 

Revenue contributions and reserves 

3.7 The capital programme can also be financed through the use of reserves 

(both capital and revenue) although revenue contributions will have an 

overall effect on the General Fund revenue budget. 

 

Capital receipts 

3.8 Capital receipts arise principally from the sale of Council capital assets. 

The sales of assets are utilized to support the Capital programme in the 

Capital Strategy. The usuable capital receipts reserve contained a 

balance of £4.625M as at 31 March 2020. 

East Hants District Council 

Capital Programme Summary

Project

2019/20 

Revised 

Forecast 

£'000

2020/21 

£'000

2021/22 

£'000

2022/23 

£'000

2023/24 

£'000

2024/25 

£'000

Projected Capital Financing

REFCUS (Revenue funded as Capital under 

Statute)
1,381 2,170 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381

External Grants & Contributions

Use of Specific Reserves 20 269 - - - -

Use of Capital Receipts

Borrowing Requirement 10,376 - - - - -

Revenue Funding

Total Projected Funding 11,777 2,439 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381

YTD 5 YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Page 45



Appendix H 
 

Borrowing requirement 

 

3.9 The borrowing requirements have been updated to reflect the potential 

financing needs to support the EHDC Enhance East Hampshire Place-

Making Strategy.  

 

4.0 Treasury Management Strategy 
 

4.1 The Capital Strategy is an accompaniment to the Treasury Management 

Strategy. The latter sets out the required Prudential Indicators for 

Treasury Management and Capital Expenditure, and includes a Policy 

Statement for the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for borrowing. 

 

5.0 Commercial activity 
 

5.1 Whilst the Council does currently receive income from investment 

properties it is presently not actively seeking to generate additional 

revenue income through the purchase of new investment properties. 

 

5.2 The Council also has a place-making strategy ‘Enhance East Hants’ 

which provides a framework for making the district the attractive place 

it can and should be. The council will use the strategy to strengthen 

the connections between people and places; prioritise investment in 

public places and the built environment; and engage and inspire 

people to want to live, work and enjoy in the district. Any investment 

will be subject to a full business case. 

 

6.0 Knowledge and Skills 
 

6.1 The Council utilises the knowledge and skills of its internal officers when 

considering capital investment decisions and where necessary it also 

relies on the expert knowledge of specialist external advisors. 

 

6.2 The Council employs professionally qualified legal, finance and property 

officers who are able to offer advice and guidance when considering any 

capital investment decisions. 

 

Finance 

 

6.3 The Section 151 Officer and Head of Finance are professionally qualified 

to advise the Council on all financial aspects of capital decisions. They 

also have the numerous years of experience of how Councils work, and 

Page 46



Appendix H 
 

also undertake Continuous Professional Development. In addition, they 

maintain knowledge and skills through regular technical updates from 

appropriate bodies. Capita Local Government Business Services are 

contracted to provide a full range of financial services to the Council 

including treasury management services, financial management and 

technical accounting support and advice. 

 

Property 

 

6.4 The Council’s in-house property team is made up of a number of 

Chartered Surveyors who advise the Council on all property matters. They 

are all members of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) 

and comply with the RICS’s rules in relation to Continuing Professional 

Development. The Property Services Manager is also an RICS 

Registered Valuer. 

 

Legal 

 

6.5 Legal Staff are professionally qualified as either solicitors or legal 

executives and are regulated by their respective professional bodies 

(Solicitors Regulation Body/Institute of Legal Executives). The staff 

undertake Continuing Professional Development and their rules of 

conduct require that they have an appropriate level of skill and expertise 

to deal with the particular matter with which they are dealing. All staff are 

aware of the operational structure of the Council. They maintain nowledge 

and skills through regular technical updates from appropriate bodies. The 

Council will also use external specialist legal advice on more complex 

transactions as and when required. 

 

External Advice 

 
6.6 The Council uses external advisors where necessary in order to 

complement the knowledge its own officers hold. Some of these advisors 

are contracted on long term contracts or are appointed on an ad-hoc 

basis when necessary

Page 47



Appendix H 
 

 

Page 48



  Appendix I 

 

EHDC Fees and Charges 2021-22 
  

Department/ Charge item  20/21 price   21/22 price  

service 

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Burial single depth - 
Purchase of exclusive right of burial deed 

       2,220.00          2,264.00  

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Burial double depth - 
Purchase of exclusive right of burial deed 

       2,220.00          2,444.00  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Burial single depth - Purchase of 
exclusive right of burial deed 

       3,900.00          4,400.00  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Burial double depth - Purchase of 
exclusive right of burial deed 

       3,900.00          4,650.00  

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Reopen an existing grave 
for a further burial (where you own the exclusive right of 
burial) 

       1,000.00          1,020.00  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Reopen an existing grave for a further 
burial (where you own the exclusive right of burial) 

       1,000.00          1,020.00  

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Ashes interment - Purchase 
of exclusive right of burial deed 

          755.00              770.10  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Ashes interment - Purchase of exclusive 
right of burial deed 

          940.00              958.80  

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Reopen an existing ashes 
plot for a further burial (where you own the exclusive 
right of burial) 

          320.00              326.40  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Reopen an existing ashes plot for a 
further burial (where you own the exclusive right of 
burial) 

          320.00              326.40  

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Burial - Purchase of 
exclusive right of burial deed for a child whose age at the 
time of death was between 1-18 years 

          475.00              484.50  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Purchase of exclusive right of burial 
deed for a child whose age at the time of death was 
between 1-18 years 

          475.00              484.50  

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Purchase of exclusive right 
of burial deed for a stillborn baby or a baby less than 12 
months old 

                   -                         -    

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Purchase of exclusive right of burial 
deed for a stillborn baby or a baby less than 12 months 
old 

                   -                         -    

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Pre-purchase of 30 years 
exclusive right of burial for a burial plot 

       1,220.00          1,320.00  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Pre-purchase of 30 years exclusive right 
of burial for a burial plot 

       2,900.00          3,150.00  

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Pre-purchase of 30 years 
exclusive right of burial for a cremation plot 

          435.00              443.70  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Pre-purchase of 30 years exclusive right 
of burial for a cremation plot 

          620.00              632.40  

Page 49



  Appendix I 

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Renewal of exclusive right 
of burial for additional 5 years - Burial and cremation 

          100.00              102.00  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Renewal of exclusive right of burial for 
additional 5 years - Burial and Cremation 

          100.00              102.00  

Cemeteries EAST HAMPSHIRE RESIDENT - Transfer of exclusive right 
of burial 

            60.00                61.20  

Cemeteries NON-RESIDENT - Transfer of exclusive right of burial             60.00                61.20  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Additional charge for interment 
outside normal hours (full grave space) 

          495.00              504.90  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Additional charge for interment 
outside normal hours (ashes) 

          295.00              300.90  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Right to erect a memorial for 10 years 
(including right for replacement memorial for 10 years) 

          150.00              153.00  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Cremation tablet (including right for 
replacement tablet) 

          150.00              153.00  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Additional inscription on a memorial 
or tablet (for each name) 

            65.00                66.30  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Erection of a memorial bench 
(excluding supply of bench) 

          750.00              765.00  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Right to plant a memorial tree 
(excluding supply of tree) 

          460.00              469.20  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Family tree research             47.00                48.00  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Administrative fee for families 
arranging interment of ashes 

            60.00                61.20  

Cemeteries MISCELLANEOUS - Administrative fee for relinquishing a 
grave space 

          105.00              107.10  

        

Pest Control Call out fee (per pest type)             21.00                21.00  

Pest Control WASPS/HORNETS - Single nest - residential charge (per 
visit) 

            45.00                54.00  

Pest Control WASPS/HORNETS - Per additional nest - residential 
charge (per visit) 

            19.00                30.00  

Pest Control WASPS/HORNETS - Single nest - residential charge for 
qualifying benefits (per visit) 

            16.00                16.00  

Pest Control WASPS/HORNETS - Per additional nest - residential 
charge for qualifying benefits (per visit) 

            11.00                11.00  

Pest Control RATS - Residential charge             45.00                55.00  

Pest Control RATS - Residential charge for qualifying benefits                    -                         -    

Pest Control RATS - Non-residential charge - hourly rate including 
materials 

            88.00                89.80  

Pest Control MICE - Residential charge             45.00                55.00  

Pest Control MICE - Residential charge for qualifying benefits                    -                         -    

Pest Control MICE - Non-residential charge - hourly rate including 
materials 

            88.00                89.80  

Pest Control BED BUGS - Residential charge - survey and detection up 
to 2 visits 

          208.00              199.00  

Pest Control BED BUGS - Residential charge for qualifying benefits             11.00                11.30  

Pest Control BED BUGS - Non-residential charge - hourly rate including 
materials 

            88.00                89.80  

Page 50



  Appendix I 

Pest Control FLEAS - Residential charge (up to 3 bedrooms)             66.00                74.00  

Pest Control FLEAS - Residential charge (4 or more bedrooms)             97.00                99.00  

Pest Control FLEAS - Residential charge for qualifying benefits             16.00                16.00  

Pest Control FLEAS - Non-residential charge - hourly rate including 
materials 

            88.00                89.80  

Pest Control COCKROACHES - Residential charge - per treatment             97.00                99.00  

Pest Control COCKROACHES - Residential charge for qualifying benefits 
- per treatment 

            16.00                16.40  

Pest Control COCKROACHES - Non-residential charge - hourly rate 
including materials 

            88.00                89.80  

Pest Control OTHER INSECT PESTS - Residential charge (up to 3 
bedrooms) 

            66.00                67.40  

Pest Control OTHER INSECT PESTS - Residential charge (4 or more 
bedrooms) 

            97.00                99.00  

Pest Control OTHER INSECT PESTS - Non-residential charge - hourly 
rate including materials 

            88.00                89.80  

Pest Control MOLES - per treatment           156.00              159.20  

Pest Control MOLES - additional treatment             66.00                67.40  

Pest Control GREY SQUIRRELS - per treatment             66.00                67.40  

Pest Control OTHER PESTS  Variable   Variable  

        

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Zoo applications (charged at hourly rate, includes interim 
and full inspections and work undertaken to reinspection, 
does not include vet inspections which will be recharged 
separately at cost price) 

 Variable   Variable  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Animal boarding (dogs or cats) - application fee           191.00              194.90  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Animal boarding (dogs or cats) - compliance fee             58.00                71.00  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Home boarding or daycare for dogs - application fee           194.00              197.90  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Home boarding or daycare for dogs - compliance fee             65.00                71.00  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Commercial dog daycare - application fee           191.00              194.90  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Commercial dog daycare - compliance fee             65.00                71.00  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Dog breeding - application fee (does not include vet 
inspections which will be recharged separately at cost 
price) 

          210.00              214.20  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Dog breeding - compliance fee             65.00                71.00  

Page 51



  Appendix I 

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Horse riding establishment (1-9 horses) - application fee 
(does not include vet inspections which will be recharged 
separately at cost price) 

          300.00              306.00  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Horse riding establishment (1-9 horses) - compliance fee             65.00                82.00  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Horse riding establishment (10-19 horses) - application 
fee (does not include vet inspections which will be 
recharged separately at cost price) 

          320.00              326.40  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Horse riding establishment (10-19 horses) - compliance 
fee 

            65.00                82.00  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Horse riding establishment (20+ horses) - application fee 
(does not include vet inspections which will be recharged 
separately at cost price) 

          381.00              388.70  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Horse riding establishment (20+ horses) - compliance fee             65.00                82.00  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Performing and exhibiting animals - application fee           256.00              261.20  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Pet shop - application fee           208.00              212.20  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Pet shop - compliance fee             65.00                71.00  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Dangerous Wild Animal Act - application for 2 year licence 
(does not include vet inspections which will be recharged 
separately at cost price) 

          190.00              210.80  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Request for re-rating           100.00              102.00  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Licence variation - £30 minimum + £25.50 per hour for 
additional work as agreed 

 Variable   Variable  

Animal Welfare 
Licensing 

Appeal cost associated with unsuccessful appeal             89.00                90.80  

        

Stray Dogs Out of hours charge for the acceptance of stray dog             11.00                11.00  

Stray Dogs Handling charge for the acceptance of stray dog             25.00                25.00  

Stray Dogs Kennels (dog taken in but not kept overnight)             24.00                24.50  

Stray Dogs Kennels (up to 2 days)             48.00                49.00  

Stray Dogs Kennels (up to 3 days)             72.00                73.50  

Stray Dogs Kennels (up to 4 days)             96.00                98.00  

Stray Dogs Kennels (up to 5 days)           120.00              122.50  

Stray Dogs Kennels (up to 6 days)           142.00              147.00  

Page 52



  Appendix I 

Stray Dogs Kennels (up to 7 days)           166.00              171.50  

Stray Dogs Kennels (up to 8 days)           192.00              196.00  

Stray Dogs Emergency medical treatments for dogs in care of the 
Council (recovery of costs) 

 Variable   Variable  

Stray Dogs Call out fee for the support of bailiffs - per visit, per 
officer 

            47.50                48.50  

        

Environmental 
Protection 

Private water supply - risk assessment - hourly rate             60.00                60.00  

Environmental 
Protection 

Private water supply - sampling visit - hourly rate             60.00                60.00  

Environmental 
Protection 

Private water supply - investigation under Regulation 15 
of the Private Water Supplies (England) Regulations 2016 
- hourly rate 

            60.00                60.00  

Environmental 
Protection 

Private water supply - granting an authorisation - hourly 
rate 

            60.00                60.00  

Environmental 
Protection 

Private water supply - analysis of a sample under 
Regulation 10 of the Private Water Supplies Regulations 
2016 

 Recovery of 
laboratory 
costs  

 Recovery of 
laboratory 
costs  

Environmental 
Protection 

Private water supply - analysis of a sample taken during 
check monitoring 

 Recovery of 
laboratory 
costs  

 Recovery of 
laboratory 
costs  

Environmental 
Protection 

Private water supply - analysis of a sample taken during 
audit monitoring 

 Recovery of 
laboratory 
costs  

 Recovery of 
laboratory 
costs  

Environmental 
Protection 

Contaminated land enquiries - hourly rate             45.00                45.90  

Environmental 
Protection 

Environmental enquiry on domestic property             60.00                61.20  

Environmental 
Protection 

Environmental enquiry on non-domestic property             60.00                61.20  

Environmental 
Protection 

Pre-application planning service for contaminated land - 
desk advice 

          125.00              127.50  

Environmental 
Protection 

Environmental information request (per hour)             25.00                25.00  

        

Food Safety Export certificate - new business request           139.00              141.80  

Food Safety Export certificate - repeat request (minimum three days' 
notice) 

            81.00                82.70  

Food Safety Export certificate - repeat request (additional charge for 
less than three days' notice) 

            40.00                40.80  

Food Safety Export certificate - charge for additional site visits             89.00                90.80  

Food Safety Reinspections under NFHRS           180.00              183.60  

Food Safety Surrender of unsound food - each             26.00                26.60  

Food Safety Safer Food Better Business - book             11.00                11.30  

Food Safety Safer Food Better Business - diary pack               5.00                  5.10  

        

Taxi Licensing PH operator - new/renewal - 1 year           146.00              146.00  

Taxi Licensing PH operator - new/renewal - 5 years           355.00              355.00  

Page 53



  Appendix I 

Taxi Licensing PH/HC vehicle - new vehicle           161.00              161.00  

Taxi Licensing PH/HC vehicle - renewal - annual fee           161.00              161.00  

Taxi Licensing HC/PH/restricted - new licence - 1 year           173.00              173.00  

Taxi Licensing HC/PH/restricted - renewal - 1 year           168.00              168.00  

Taxi Licensing HC/PH/restricted - new licence - 3 years           235.00              235.00  

Taxi Licensing HC/PH/restricted - renewal - 3 years           204.00              204.00  

Taxi Licensing Knowledge test             41.00                41.00  

Taxi Licensing Transfer of vehicle proprietor              40.00                40.00  

Taxi Licensing Temporary vehicle licence             69.00                69.00  

Taxi Licensing Replacement vehicle licence             14.00                14.00  

Taxi Licensing Replacement vehicle plate             27.00                27.00  

Taxi Licensing Change of vehicle registration             55.00                55.00  

Taxi Licensing Replacement drivers licence             14.00                14.00  

Taxi Licensing Replacement of ID badge             19.00                19.00  

Taxi Licensing Driver licence - change of address             21.00                21.00  

Taxi Licensing Driver licence - change of address &/or name             29.00                29.00  

Taxi Licensing Plate fixings - number plate bracket             21.60                21.60  

Taxi Licensing Plate fixings - universal bracket             12.00                12.00  

Taxi Licensing Pair of pouches               8.40                  8.40  

Taxi Licensing Private hire vehicle exemption certificates             54.00                54.00  

        

Licensing Act Premises and club premises fees - main fees - 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/alcohol-
licensing-fee-levels/main-fee-levels 

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

Licensing Act Additional fees - 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/alcohol-
licensing-fee-levels/additional-and-other-fees 

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

        

Other Licensing Acupuncture, tattooing, ear piercing and electrolysis - 
premises 

          125.00              125.00  

Other Licensing Acupuncture, tattooing, ear piercing and electrolysis - 
operator 

            50.00                50.00  

Other Licensing Acupuncture, tattooing, ear piercing and electrolysis - 
administration fee 

            20.30                20.30  

Other Licensing Factual statement for civil proceedings - hourly rate  Variable   Variable  

Other Licensing Tables and chairs on the highway - licence           163.00              163.00  

Other Licensing Tables and chairs on the highway - variation             50.00                50.00  

Other Licensing Tables and chairs on the highway - renewal             83.00                83.00  

Other Licensing Pavement Licence 
 

            100.00  

Other Licensing Gambling premises licence fees - 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/479/schedule/
made 

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

Page 54



  Appendix I 

Other Licensing Premises Licence - Conversion           300.00              300.00  

Other Licensing Notification of 2 or fewer gaming machines             50.00                50.00  

Other Licensing Permit - made by an existing operator           100.00              100.00  

Other Licensing Gaming machine permit           150.00              150.00  

Other Licensing Variation of a gaming machine permit           100.00              100.00  

Other Licensing Transfer of a gaming machine permit             25.00                25.00  

Other Licensing Gaming machine permit - annual fee             50.00                50.00  

Other Licensing Change of name on gaming machine permit             25.00                25.00  

Other Licensing Club gaming & gaming machine permits           200.00              200.00  

Other Licensing Permit - made by an existing operator           100.00              100.00  

Other Licensing Annual fee             50.00                50.00  

Other Licensing Renewal club gaming permit           200.00              200.00  

Other Licensing Renewal club gaming permit - made by an existing holder           100.00              100.00  

Other Licensing Prize gaming permit           300.00              300.00  

Other Licensing Prize gaming permit - made by an existing operator           100.00              100.00  

Other Licensing Renewal of prize gaming permit           300.00              300.00  

Other Licensing Change of name on gaming machine permit             25.00                25.00  

Other Licensing Copy of prize gaming permit             15.00                15.00  

Other Licensing Small society lottery - Registration             40.00                40.00  

Other Licensing Small society lottery  - Annual Renewal             20.00                20.00  

Other Licensing Temporary use notices           500.00              500.00  

Other Licensing Sex - establishment - Licence            257.10              257.10  

Other Licensing Sex - establishment - Licence renewal           209.00              209.00  

Other Licensing Street Trading Licence - Annual           235.00              235.00  

Page 55



  Appendix I 

Other Licensing Scrap metal - Site Licence           295.00              295.00  

Other Licensing Scrap metal - Collectors Licence             75.00                75.00  

Other Licensing Scrap metal - Variation Collectors to Site Licence           255.00              255.00  

Other Licensing Scrap metal - Other Variation             35.00                35.00  

        

Engineering 
Contracts 

Private drain clearance (working hours 8:30-16:30) - 
hourly rate 

            96.00                98.00  

Engineering 
Contracts 

Private drain clearance (out of hours - Sunday/bank 
holidays, min. 2 hour charge) - hourly rate 

          144.00              146.90  

Engineering 
Contracts 

Drain jetting - hourly rate             97.00                99.00  

Engineering 
Contracts 

CCTV - hourly rate           100.00              102.00  

Engineering 
Contracts 

Report on drains - minimum charge, total dependant on 
requirements - per report 

            54.00                55.10  

Engineering 
Contracts 

Sewer map extracts - per copy             14.00                14.30  

Engineering 
Contracts 

Chewing gum / graffiti removal - hourly rate (cost of 
materials not included) 

            79.00                80.60  

Engineering 
Contracts 

Chewing gum / graffiti removal - cost of materials  Variable   Variable  

        

Private Sector 
Housing 

HMO Licence (5 or less occupants) - 5 year licence           600.00              600.00  

Private Sector 
Housing 

HMO Licence (6 to 10 occupants) - 5 year licence           710.00              710.00  

Private Sector 
Housing 

HMO Licence (11 to 15 occupants) - 5 year licence           820.00              820.00  

Private Sector 
Housing 

HMO Licence (16 to 20 occupants) - 5 year licence           930.00              930.00  

Private Sector 
Housing 

HMO Licence (20+ occupants) - 5 year licence        1,040.00          1,040.00  

        

Democratic 
Services 

Copying price - per A3 or A4 page               1.00                  1.10  

Democratic 
Services 

Copying price - per A0 or A2 page               1.00                  1.10  

        

Information 
Governance 

FOI/EIR Information Requests - requests above the 
appropriate limit (more than 18 hours) may be charged at 
the hourly rate of £25 

            25.00                25.00  

        

Electoral Services Basic electoral register full paper - per 1000 electors (plus 
admin fee of £10) 

              5.00                  5.00  

Page 56



  Appendix I 

Electoral Services Basic electoral register full data - per 1000 electors (plus 
admin fee of £20) 

              1.50                  1.50  

Electoral Services Basic electoral register edited paper - per 1000 electors 
(plus admin fee of £10) 

              5.00                  5.00  

Electoral Services Basic electoral register edited data - per 1000 electors 
(plus admin fee of £20) 

              1.50                  1.50  

Electoral Services Marked electoral register - data - per 1000 electors (plus 
admin fee of £10) 

              1.00                  1.00  

Electoral Services Marked electoral register - paper - per 1000 electors (plus 
admin fee of £10) 

              2.00                  2.00  

Electoral Services Electoral register - monthly updates             40.00                40.00  

Electoral Services Certificate of residency - by email               6.00                  6.20  

Electoral Services Certificate of residency - by post             11.00                11.30  

        

Economic 
Development 

Market - regular trader -  10ft x 10ft pitch             28.00                28.60  

Economic 
Development 

Market - casual trader -  10ft x 10ft pitch             36.00                36.80  

        

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Disposal costs charged to last registered keeper - charged 
by Hampshire CC - per vehicle 

 Variable   Variable  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Fine for abandonment of vehicle - vehicle on road, not 
upright and/or substantially damaged 

          200.00              200.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - per vehicle - 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2008/2095/regulatio
n/4/made 

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Storage charged to last registered keeper - per 24 hours 
or part - 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2008/2095/regulatio
n/4/made 

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

 Listed on 
gov.uk  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle <= 
3.5 tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass - Vehicle on road, 
upright and not substantially damaged or any two 
wheeled vehicle whatever its condition or position on or 
off the road 

          150.00              150.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle <= 
3.5 tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass - Vehicle, 
excluding a two wheeled vehicle, on road but either not 
upright or substantially damaged or both 

          250.00              250.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle <= 
3.5 tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass - Vehicle, 
excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off road, upright and 
not substantially damaged 

          200.00              200.00  

Page 57



  Appendix I 

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle <= 
3.5 tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass - Vehicle, 
excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off road but either not 
upright or substantially damaged or both 

          300.00              300.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >3.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <= 7.5 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle on road, upright and not substantially 
damaged or any two wheeled vehicle whatever its 
condition or position on or off the road 

          200.00              200.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >3.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <= 7.5 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle, excluding a two wheeled vehicle, on road 
but either not upright or substantially damaged or both 

          650.00              650.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >3.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <= 7.5 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle, excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off 
road, upright and not substantially damaged 

          400.00              400.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >3.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <= 7.5 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle, excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off road 
but either not upright or substantially damaged or both 

          850.00              850.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >7.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <18 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle on road, upright and not substantially 
damaged or any two wheeled vehicle whatever its 
condition or position on or off the road 

          350.00              350.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >7.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <18 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle, excluding a two wheeled vehicle, on road 
but either not upright or substantially damaged or both - 
UNLADEN 

       2,000.00          2,000.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >7.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <18 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle, excluding a two wheeled vehicle, on road 
but either not upright or substantially damaged or both - 
LADEN 

       3,000.00          3,000.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >7.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <18 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle, excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off 
road, upright and not substantially damaged - UNLADEN 

       1,000.00          1,000.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >7.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <18 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle, excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off 
road, upright and not substantially damaged - LADEN 

       1,500.00          1,500.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >7.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <18 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle, excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off road 
but either not upright or substantially damaged or both - 
UNLADEN 

       3,000.00          3,000.00  

Page 58



  Appendix I 

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >7.5 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) <18 tonnes 
MAM - Vehicle, excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off road 
but either not upright or substantially damaged or both - 
LADEN 

       4,500.00          4,500.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >18 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) - Vehicle on 
road, upright and not substantially damaged or any two 
wheeled vehicle whatever its condition or position on or 
off the road 

          350.00              350.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >18 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) - Vehicle, 
excluding a two wheeled vehicle, on road but either not 
upright or substantially damaged or both - UNLADEN 

       3,000.00          3,000.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >18 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) - Vehicle, 
excluding a two wheeled vehicle, on road but either not 
upright or substantially damaged or both - LADEN 

       4,500.00          4,500.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >18 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) - Vehicle, 
excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off road, upright and 
not substantially damaged - UNLADEN 

       1,500.00          1,500.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >18 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) - Vehicle, 
excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off road, upright and 
not substantially damaged - LADEN 

       2,000.00          2,000.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >18 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) - Vehicle, 
excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off road but either not 
upright or substantially damaged or both - UNLADEN 

       4,500.00          4,500.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Removals charged to last registered keeper - vehicle >18 
tonnes Maximum Authorised Mass (MAM) - Vehicle, 
excluding a two wheeled vehicle, off road but either not 
upright or substantially damaged or both - LADEN 

       6,000.00          6,000.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Charge for storage of vehicle - 2 wheeled - Per 24 hours 
or part 

            10.00                10.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Charge for storage of vehicle - <=3.5 Tonne MAM - Per 24 
hours or part 

            20.00                20.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Charge for storage of vehicle - >3.5 <= 7.5 Tonne MAM - 
Per 24 hours or part 

            25.00                25.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Charge for storage of vehicle - >7.5 <= 18 Tonne MAM - 
Per 24 hours or part 

            30.00                30.00  

Enforcement - 
Abandoned 
Vehicles 

Charge for storage of vehicle - > 18 Tonne MAM - Per 24 
hours or part 

            35.00                35.00  

        

Page 59



  Appendix I 

Building Control All work charged at hourly rate of £61.38 plus VAT             69.00                73.66  

        

Arboriculture Pre-application charge - hourly rate             92.00                93.90  

Arboriculture External arboricultural consultancy - hourly rate             62.00                63.30  

        

Enforcement - 
Littering and 
Flytipping 

Littering fine - per event             80.00                80.00  

Enforcement - 
Littering and 
Flytipping 

Breach of Public Space Protection Order - dog fouling           100.00              100.00  

Enforcement - 
Littering and 
Flytipping 

Flytipping fine - per event  Variable   Variable  

        

Street Furniture Supply and installation of street name plates in new 
developments 

 Variable   Variable  

Street Furniture Damage to street furniture  Variable   Variable  

        

Refuse and 
Recycling 

One free collection of up to 4 items per year (for 
residents in receipt of council tax or housing benefits) 

                   -                         -    

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Special collection by volume - up to 1 cubic metre (e.g. 4 
chairs, chest of drawers, wardrobe, boiler, 3 seater sofa) 

            41.00                42.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Special collection by volume - up to 2 cubic metre (e.g. 
bed and mattress, bathroom suite, three piece suite) 

            70.00                72.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Special collection by volume - full load           215.00              220.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Collection of single item (1 chair, table, mattress, 
radiator, vacuum cleaner, TV, bicycle, fence panel, door, 
undercounter fridge/freezer, etc) 

            18.00                19.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Collection of 1 large or 2-3 small items (cooker, 3sqm 
carpet, washing machine/tumble dryer, 2 seater sofa) 

            29.00                30.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Supply of refuse bin (140l or 240l green bin)             30.00                31.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Supply of refuse bin for communal properties (1100l bin)           254.00              259.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Supply of recycling bin (140l or 240l black bin)             30.00                31.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Supply of recycling bin for communal properties (1100l 
bin) 

          254.00              259.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Supply of glass bin (38l bin)               6.00                12.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Supply of glass bin for communal properties (240l bin)             50.00                51.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Supply of garden waste bin (240l brown bin)             30.00                31.00  

Page 60



  Appendix I 

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Supply of bin pack - 1 refuse bin (140l green bin), 1 
recycling bin (140l black bin) and 1 glass bin (38l bin) 

            66.00                68.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Supply of bin pack - 1 refuse bin (240l green bin), 1 
recycling bin (240l black bin) and 1 glass bin (38l bin) 

            66.00                68.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Garden waste collection (fortnightly) - 1 bin - annual fee             70.00                72.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Garden waste collection (fortnightly) - 1 sack - annual fee 
(available to existing customers only) 

            47.00                48.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Garden waste collection (fortnightly) - 1 sack - discounted 
annual fee (available to existing customers only) 

            15.00                16.00  

Refuse and 
Recycling 

Replacement garden waste sack               6.00                  7.00  

        

Land Charges LLC1             40.00                40.80  

Land Charges Con29           150.00              153.00  

Land Charges LLC1 for additional parcel of land               5.00                  5.10  

Land Charges Con29 for additional parcel of land             20.00                20.40  

Land Charges Con29 optional questions 4, 21, 22             40.00                40.80  

Land Charges Con29 optional questions             30.00                30.60  

Land Charges Solicitors own questions             24.00                24.50  

Land Charges Planning 1.1 a-e             18.00                18.40  

Land Charges Building Regulations 1.1 f-i               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Planning Designations and proposals 1.2               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Land required for public purposes 3.1               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Outstanding notices 3.7 a-d             12.00                12.30  

Land Charges Contravention of building regulations 3.8             15.00                15.30  

Land Charges Outstanding notices 3.9 a-d             12.00                12.30  

Land Charges Outstanding notices 3.9 e-l             12.00                12.30  

Land Charges Outstanding notices 3.9 m               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Outstanding notices 3.9 n               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 3.10               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Conservation areas 3.11 a               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Conservation areas 3.11 b               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Compulsory purchase 3.12               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Assets of Community Value 3.15               6.00                  6.20  

Land Charges Property name additions/amendments - rename a road           311.00              317.30  

Land Charges Property name additions/amendments - rename a house           104.00              106.10  

Land Charges Numbering of new developments - first plot           208.00              212.20  

Land Charges Numbering of new developments - 2+ plots (per plot)             42.00                42.90  

        

Planning 
Enforcement 

Check whether enforcement notice complied with           266.00              271.40  

Planning 
Enforcement 

Check whether enforcement notice complied with, 
including site visit 

          373.00              380.50  

Planning 
Enforcement 

Check whether planning conditions 
complied/development accords with permission (first 
condition) 

          153.00              156.10  

Page 61



  Appendix I 

Planning 
Enforcement 

Confirm whether single household permission accords 
with plans and conditions 

          429.00              437.60  

Planning 
Enforcement 

Formal determination that enforcement action will not be 
taken (normal planning fee + 15%) 

 Variable   Variable  

Planning 
Enforcement 

High hedges - submission of complaint           521.00              531.50  

        

Planning 
Development 

Copies of applications, correspondence - £1 for first 
sheet, 10p per additional sheet 

 Variable   Variable  

Planning 
Development 

Copies of decision notices - £1 for first sheet, 10p per 
additional sheet 

 Variable   Variable  

Planning 
Development 

Copies of appeal decisions - £1 for first sheet, 10p per 
additional sheet 

 Variable   Variable  

Planning 
Development 

Check validity of planning application - personal visitor             42.00                55.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - do I need planning permission?             35.00                36.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - householder / other small scale 
development 

            49.00                55.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - change of use           133.00              136.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - self contained granny annexes at 
domestic properties 

          133.00              136.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - advertisements             51.00                52.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - minor development - 1 to 3 
houses, up to 499sqm commercial, or site of up to 0.49ha 

          133.00              136.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - minor development - 4 to 9 
houses, 500-999sqm commercial, or site of 0.5-0.99ha 

          250.00              260.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - major development - 10 to 49 
houses, 1000-4999sqm commercial, or site of 1-2ha 

          561.00              575.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - major development - 50 to 100 
houses, 5000-9999sqm commercial, or site of 2-4ha 

       1,036.00          1,060.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - large scale major development - 
101+ houses, 10,000+sqm commercial, or 4+ha - 10% of 
the planning application fee 

 Variable   Variable  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - specialist tree advice - written 
advice 

            67.00                69.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - specialist tree advice - site visit           133.00              136.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - specialist listed building / 
conservation area advice - written advice 

            63.00                69.00  

Planning 
Development 

Pre-application advice - specialist listed building / 
conservation area advice - site visit 

          125.00              136.00  

Planning 
Development 

Development Consultation Forum        2,071.00          2,115.00  

Planning 
Development 

Deed of Variation of S106 - administration fee (charged in 
addition to legal fees) 

          234.00              240.00  

Page 62



  Appendix I 

Planning 
Development 

Statutory planning fees - 
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/uploads/english_appli
cation_fees.pdf 

 Listed on 
Planning 
Portal  

 Listed on 
Planning 
Portal  

        

Planning Policy Advice publications - heritage booklets               6.00                  6.20  

Planning Policy Advice publications - heritage information leaflets               6.00                  6.20  

Planning Policy Planning Policy publications - minimum £21.50             21.00                21.50  

Planning Policy S106 monitoring fees - per non financial head of term (up 
to a maximum of £10,883 per application) 

          739.00              753.80  

Planning Policy S106 monitoring fees - per financial head of term (up to a 
maximum of £10,883 per application) - charged at 5% of 
cost 

 Variable   Variable  

Planning Policy Planning obligations - advice to solicitors           104.00              106.10  

Planning Policy Planning obligations - Community Infrastructure Levy - 
see http://www.easthants.gov.uk/CIL-calculator 

 Variable   Variable  

        

Facilities Hire of Council Chamber - hourly rate             40.00                40.80  

Facilities Hire of Ante Room - hourly rate             19.00                19.40  

Facilities 42 inch LED TV screen hire - per day or part           176.00              179.60  

Facilities 50 inch LED TV screen hire - per day or part           322.00              328.50  

Facilities Audio visual - laptop with intranet link - per booking             14.00                14.30  

Facilities Audio visual - Epson projector - per booking             88.00                89.80  

Facilities Audio visual - flip charts - per booking               9.00                  9.20  

Facilities Audio visual - portable projector screen - per booking             12.00                12.30  

Facilities Ecostation - Office 1             22.00                22.50  

Facilities Ecostation - Office 2             27.00                27.60  

Facilities Ecostation - Lecture Theatre             27.00                27.60  

Facilities Ecostation - Exhibition Hall             27.00                27.60  

Facilities Ecostation - Meeting 1             13.00                13.30  

Facilities Ecostation - Meeting 2             13.00                13.30  

Facilities Ecostation - Meeting 3             13.00                13.30  

Facilities Ecostation - Activity Room 1             13.00                13.30  

Facilities Ecostation - Activity Room 2             13.00                13.30  

        

Investment & 
Commercial 
Property 

Variations to lease terms (including consent to 
sublet/assign/alterations) 

 Actual cost   Actual cost  

Investment & 
Commercial 
Property 

Deed of easements/rights of way or access  Actual cost   Actual cost  

Investment & 
Commercial 
Property 

Removal of a restrictive covenant  Actual cost   Actual cost  

        

Page 63



  Appendix I 

Legal Services Freehold sale without overage - Commercial - 0.75% on 
the price subject to a minimum of £750 

 
            750.00  

Legal Services Freehold sale with overage - Commercial - 0.75% on the 
price subject to a minimum of £1,250 

 
        1,250.00  

Legal Services Freehold sale with right of pre-emption - Commercial - 
0.75% on the price subject to a minimum of £1,250 

 
        1,250.00  

Legal Services Freehold sale without overage - Non-commercial (e.g. 
charity) - 0.6% on the price subject to a minimum of £750 

 
            750.00  

Legal Services Freehold sale with overage - Non-commercial (e.g. 
charity) - 0.6% on the price subject to a minimum of 
£1,250 

 
        1,250.00  

Legal Services Freehold sale with right of pre-emption - Non-commercial 
(e.g. charity) - 0.6% on the price subject to a minimum of 
£1,250 

 
        1,250.00  

Legal Services Auction sale - Commercial - 0.75% on the price subject to 
a minimum of £1,000 - PLUS searches & other 
disbursements to be paid by Buyer under the auction 
contract 

 
        1,000.00  

Legal Services Auction sale - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) - 0.75% on 
the price subject to a minimum of £1,000 - PLUS searches 
& other disbursements to be paid by Buyer under the 
auction contract 

 
        1,000.00  

Legal Services Preparing & deducing an epitome of title - Commercial - 
Hourly rate of £202 

 
            202.00  

Legal Services Preparing & deducing an epitome of title - Non-
commercial (e.g. charity) - Hourly rate of £151.50 

 
            151.50  

Legal Services Grant of easement - Commercial 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Grant of easement - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            562.50  

Legal Services Sale of public toilets - Commercial 
 

        1,000.00  

Legal Services Sale of public toilets - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Grant of short-term licence to occupy - Commercial 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Grant of short-term licence to occupy - Non-commercial 
(e.g. charity) 

 
            562.50  

Legal Services Grant of all licences other than above - Commercial 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Grant of all licences other than above - Non-commercial 
(e.g. charity) 

 
            562.50  

Legal Services Freehold purchase - Commercial - 0.75% on the price 
subject to a minimum of £1,500 - PLUS searches & other 
disbursements 

 
        1,500.00  

Legal Services Freehold purchase - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) - 0.6% 
on the price subject to a minimum of £1,500 - PLUS 
searches & other disbursements 

 
        1,500.00  

Legal Services Transfer of public open space to Council by developer - 
Commercial 

 
        1,000.00  

Legal Services Transfer of public open space to Council by developer - 
Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 

 
            750.00  

Legal Services Public open space adverts - Commercial 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Public open space adverts - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            562.50  

Legal Services Grant of a commercial lease - Commercial - £1,500 
minimum 

 
        1,500.00  

Page 64



  Appendix I 

Legal Services Grant of a commercial lease - Non-commercial (e.g. 
charity) - £1,125 minimum 

 
        1,125.00  

Legal Services Grant of a commercial lease - If outside PII L&TA 1954 - 
Commercial - £2,000 minimum 

 
        2,000.00  

Legal Services Grant of a commercial lease - If outside PII L&TA 1954 - 
Non-commercial (e.g. charity) - £1,500 minimum 

 
        1,500.00  

Legal Services Grant of tenancy at will - Commercial 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Grant of tenancy at will - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            562.50  

Legal Services Grant of residential lease - Commercial 
 

            500.00  

Legal Services Grant of residential lease - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            375.00  

Legal Services Purchase of a lease - Commercial - £1,500 minimum 
 

        1,500.00  

Legal Services Purchase of a lease - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) - 
£1,125 minimum 

 
        1,125.00  

Legal Services Deed of variation - Commercial 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Deed of variation - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            562.50  

Legal Services Deed of surrender - Commercial 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Deed of surrender - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            562.50  

Legal Services Deed of release - Commercial 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Deed of release - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            562.50  

Legal Services Deed of receipt - Commercial 
 

            295.00  

Legal Services Deed of receipt - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            221.25  

Legal Services Deed of dedication - Commercial 
 

            395.00  

Legal Services Deed of dedication - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            296.25  

Legal Services Drafting report on title - Commercial - Hourly rate of £202 
 

            202.00  

Legal Services Drafting report on title - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) - 
Hourly rate of £151.50 

 
            151.50  

Legal Services Deed of covenant  - Commercial 
 

            395.00  

Legal Services Deed of covenant  - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            296.25  

Legal Services Corrections & rectifications (e.g. to leases or titles) - 
Commercial 

 
            500.00  

Legal Services Corrections & rectifications (e.g. to leases or titles) - Non-
commercial (e.g. charity) 

 
            375.00  

Legal Services Side letters - Commercial 
 

            295.00  

Legal Services Side letters - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            221.25  

Legal Services Legal charges (mortgages) - Commercial 
 

            750.00  

Legal Services Legal charges (mortgages) - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 
 

            562.50  

Legal Services Preparation & services of notices (e.g. s25, s26 & other) - 
Commercial 

 
            500.00  

Legal Services Preparation & services of notices (e.g. s25, s26 & other) - 
Non-commercial (e.g. charity) 

 
            375.00  

Legal Services Title enquiries - Commercial - Hourly rate of £202 
(minimum of £202) 

 
            202.00  

Legal Services Title enquiries - Non-commercial (e.g. charity) - Hourly 
rate of £151.50 (minimum of £151.50) 

 
            151.50  

Legal Services S106 Planning Agreements - Hourly rate of £202 
(minimum 4 hours/£808) 

          792.00              808.00  

Legal Services S106 Unilateral Undertaking  - Hourly rate of £202 
(minimum 4 hours/£808) 

          792.00              808.00  

Legal Services Deeds of Variation to S106 Planning Agreements (simple)           792.00              800.00  

Page 65



  Appendix I 

Legal Services Deeds of Variation to S106 Planning Agreements 
(complex)  - Hourly rate of £202 (minimum 4 hours/£808) 

          792.00              808.00  

Legal Services Deeds of Revocation relating to Planning Agreements           792.00              800.00  

Legal Services Footpath Orders - administrative and legal fees        1,500.00          1,500.00  

Legal Services Any transactions and matters not listed above - 
Commercial  - Hourly rate of £202 

 
            202.00  

Legal Services Any transactions and matters not listed above - Non-
commercial (e.g. charity)  - Hourly rate of £151.50 

 
            151.50  

        

Communications Advertising in Partners magazine - full page outside back 
cover 

       1,410.00          1,438.20  

Communications Advertising in Partners magazine - full page internal        1,290.00          1,315.80  

Communications Advertising in Partners magazine - half page internal           708.00              722.20  

Communications Advertising in Partners magazine - quarter page internal           360.00              367.20  

        

Parking Castle Yard Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 1 hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Castle Yard Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 2 hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Castle Yard Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 3 hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Castle Yard Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 4 hours 

              3.30                  3.30  

Parking Castle Yard Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 5 hours 

              3.90                  3.90  

Parking Castle Yard Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 9 hours 

              6.20                  6.20  

Parking Castle Yard Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all 
day 

              7.00                  7.00  

Parking Swan Street Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and 
Sun 10am-4pm - up to 1 hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Swan Street Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and 
Sun 10am-4pm - up to 2 hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Swan Street Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and 
Sun 10am-4pm - up to 3 hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Swan Street Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and 
Sun 10am-4pm - up to 4 hours 

              3.30                  3.30  

Parking Swan Street Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and 
Sun 10am-4pm - up to 5 hours 

              3.90                  3.90  

Parking Swan Street Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and 
Sun 10am-4pm - up to 9 hours 

              6.20                  6.20  

Parking Swan Street Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and 
Sun 10am-4pm - all day 

              7.00                  7.00  

Parking Festival Hall Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 1 hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Page 66



  Appendix I 

Parking Festival Hall Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 2 hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Festival Hall Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 3 hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Festival Hall Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 4 hours 

              2.60                  2.60  

Parking Festival Hall Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 5 hours 

              3.20                  3.20  

Parking Festival Hall Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 9 hours 

              4.00                  4.00  

Parking Festival Hall Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all 
day 

              6.20                  6.20  

Parking Central Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and Sun 
10am-4pm - up to 2 hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Central Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and Sun 
10am-4pm - up to 3 hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Causeway Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and 
Sun 10am-4pm - up to 2 hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Causeway Car Park, Petersfield - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm and 
Sun 10am-4pm - up to 3 hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Church Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
1 hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Church Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
2 hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Church Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
3 hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Church Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
4 hours 

              3.20                  3.20  

Parking Church Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
5 hours 

              3.50                  3.50  

Parking Church Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
9 hours 

              5.60                  5.60  

Parking Church Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all 
day 

              7.00                  7.00  

Parking Bank Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 1 hour               1.00                  1.00  

Parking Bank Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 2 hours               1.40                  1.40  

Parking Bank Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 3 hours               1.90                  1.90  

Parking Bank Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 4 hours               3.20                  3.20  

Parking Bank Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 5 hours               3.50                  3.50  

Parking Bank Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 9 hours               5.80                  5.80  

Parking Bank Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all day               7.00                  7.00  

Parking Bank Car Park, Alton - Sun 10am-4pm - any length of stay               1.00                  1.00  

Parking Vicarage Hill Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 1 
hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Vicarage Hill Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 2 
hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Vicarage Hill Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 3 
hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Vicarage Hill Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 4 
hours 

              2.50                  2.50  

Page 67



  Appendix I 

Parking Vicarage Hill Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 5 
hours 

              3.00                  3.00  

Parking Vicarage Hill Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 9 
hours 

              3.80                  3.80  

Parking Vicarage Hill Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all day               5.70                  5.70  

Parking Mount Pleasant Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 1 hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Mount Pleasant Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 2 hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Mount Pleasant Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 3 hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Mount Pleasant Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 4 hours 

              2.50                  2.50  

Parking Mount Pleasant Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 5 hours 

              3.00                  3.00  

Parking Mount Pleasant Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up 
to 9 hours 

              3.80                  3.80  

Parking Mount Pleasant Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all 
day 

              5.70                  5.70  

Parking Mount Pleasant Car Park, Alton - Sun 10am-4pm - any 
length of stay 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Victoria Road Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
1 hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Victoria Road Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
2 hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Victoria Road Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
3 hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Victoria Road Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
4 hours 

              2.50                  2.50  

Parking Victoria Road Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
5 hours 

              3.00                  3.00  

Parking Victoria Road Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
9 hours 

              3.80                  3.80  

Parking Victoria Road Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all day               5.70                  5.70  

Parking Victoria Road Car Park, Alton - Sun 10am-4pm - any 
length of stay 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Manor Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 1 hour               1.00                  1.00  

Parking Manor Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 2 
hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Manor Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 3 
hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Manor Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 4 
hours 

              3.20                  3.20  

Parking Manor Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 5 
hours 

              3.50                  3.50  

Parking Manor Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 9 
hours 

              5.60                  5.60  

Parking Manor Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all day               7.00                  7.00  

Parking Rogers Court Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
1 hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Page 68



  Appendix I 

Parking Rogers Court Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
2 hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Rogers Court Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
3 hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Rogers Court Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
4 hours 

              3.10                  3.10  

Parking Rogers Court Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
5 hours 

              3.50                  3.50  

Parking Rogers Court Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 
9 hours 

              5.60                  5.60  

Parking Rogers Court Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all day               7.00                  7.00  

Parking Turk Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 1 
hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Turk Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 2 
hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Turk Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 3 
hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Turk Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 4 
hours 

              3.30                  3.30  

Parking Turk Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 5 
hours 

              3.70                  3.70  

Parking Turk Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 9 
hours 

              5.60                  5.60  

Parking Turk Street Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all day               7.00                  7.00  

Parking Turk Street Car Park, Alton - Sun 10am-4pm - any length 
of stay 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Lady Place Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 1 
hour 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Lady Place Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 2 
hours 

              1.40                  1.40  

Parking Lady Place Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 3 
hours 

              1.90                  1.90  

Parking Lady Place Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 4 
hours 

              3.30                  3.30  

Parking Lady Place Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 5 
hours 

              3.70                  3.70  

Parking Lady Place Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - up to 9 
hours 

              6.00                  6.00  

Parking Lady Place Car Park, Alton - Mon-Sat 8am-6pm - all day               7.00                  7.00  

Parking Lady Place Car Park, Alton - Sun 10am-4pm - any length of 
stay 

              1.00                  1.00  

Parking Town Centre Parking Permit - Standard - Off-street 
Annual 

          900.00              900.00  

Parking Town Centre Parking Permit - Electric/Hybrid Car - Off-
street Annual 

          540.00              540.00  

Parking Town Centre Parking Permit - Low Emission up to 120 
g/km - Off-street Annual 

          630.00              675.00  

Parking Town Centre Parking Permit - Resident (Car Park near 
Property) - Off-street Annual 

          810.00              810.00  

Parking Town Centre Parking Permit - Standard - Off-street 6-
month 

          500.00              500.00  

Page 69



  Appendix I 

Parking Town Centre Parking Permit - Electric/Hybrid Car - Off-
street 6-month 

          300.00              300.00  

Parking Town Centre Parking Permit - Low Emission up to 120 
g/km - Off-street 6-month 

          350.00              375.00  

Parking Town Centre Parking Permit - Resident (Car Park near 
Property) - Off-street 6-month 

          450.00              450.00  

Parking Peripheral Parking Permit - Standard - Off-street Annual           680.00              680.00  

Parking Peripheral Parking Permit - Electric/Hybrid Car - Off-street 
Annual 

          408.00              408.00  

Parking Peripheral Parking Permit - Low Emission up to 120 g/km 
- Off-street Annual 

          476.00              510.00  

Parking Peripheral Parking Permit - Resident (Car Park near 
Property) - Off-street Annual 

          612.00              612.00  

Parking Peripheral Parking Permit - Standard - Off-street 6-month           350.00              350.00  

Parking Peripheral Parking Permit - Electric/Hybrid Car - Off-street 
6-month 

          210.00              210.00  

Parking Peripheral Parking Permit - Low Emission up to 120 g/km 
- Off-street 6-month 

          245.00              262.50  

Parking Peripheral Parking Permit - Resident (Car Park near 
Property) - Off-street 6-month 

          315.00              315.00  

Parking Liphook: Midhurst Rd, Station Rd - Standard - Off-street 
Annual 

          550.00              550.00  

Parking Liphook: Midhurst Rd, Station Rd - Electric/Hybrid Car - 
Off-street Annual 

          220.00              220.00  

Parking Liphook: Midhurst Rd, Station Rd - Low Emission up to 
120 g/km - Off-street Annual 

          302.50              412.50  

Parking Liphook: Midhurst Rd, Station Rd - Resident (Car Park 
near Property) - Off-street Annual 

          495.00              495.00  

Parking Liphook: Midhurst Rd, Station Rd - Standard - Off-street 
6-month 

          300.00              300.00  

Parking Liphook: Midhurst Rd, Station Rd - Electric/Hybrid Car - 
Off-street 6-month 

          120.00              120.00  

Parking Liphook: Midhurst Rd, Station Rd - Low Emission up to 
120 g/km - Off-street 6-month 

          165.00              225.00  

Parking Liphook: Midhurst Rd, Station Rd - Resident (Car Park 
near Property) - Off-street 6-month 

          270.00              270.00  

Parking Liss: Hill Brow - Standard - Off-street Annual           450.00              450.00  

Parking Liss: Hill Brow - Electric/Hybrid Car - Off-street Annual           180.00              180.00  

Parking Liss: Hill Brow - Low Emission up to 120 g/km - Off-street 
Annual 

          247.50              337.50  

Parking Liss: Hill Brow - Resident (Car Park near Property) - Off-
street Annual 

          405.00              405.00  

Parking Liss: Hill Brow - Standard - Off-street 6-month           250.00              250.00  

Parking Liss: Hill Brow - Electric/Hybrid Car - Off-street 6-month           100.00              100.00  

Parking Liss: Hill Brow - Low Emission up to 120 g/km - Off-street 
6-month 

          137.50              187.50  

Parking Liss: Hill Brow - Resident (Car Park near Property) - Off-
street 6-month 

          225.00              225.00  

Parking Residents' Annual Parking Permit  - On-street Permit             50.00                50.00  

Parking Residents' Annual Second Permit - On-street Permit             85.00                85.00  

Page 70



  Appendix I 

Parking Admin fee for permit replacement - On-street Permit             10.00                10.00  

Parking Visitors' Parking Permit - per book of 10 (max 60 per year) 
- On-street Permit 

            10.00                10.00  

Parking Tradesmen Waiver - Daily               8.00                10.00  

Parking Tradesmen Waiver - Weekly             40.00                50.00  

Parking Tradesmen Waiver - Monthly           120.00              150.00  

Parking Higher penalty charge notice -  paid within 28 days, 50% 
discount if paid in 14 days 

            70.00                70.00  

Parking Lower penalty charge notice -  paid within 28 days, 50% 
discount if paid in 14 days 

            50.00                50.00  

        

Traffic 
Management 

Section 115 consent - application           320.00              320.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Section 115 consent - annual renewal           130.00              130.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Traffic Regulation Orders - temporary road closure by 
notice 

       1,750.00          1,800.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Traffic Regulation Orders - Urgent (Emergency) 
temporary road closure by notice (if less than 5 days 
duration) 

       1,750.00          2,100.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Traffic Regulation Orders - temporary road closure by 
order - plus advertising cost 

       1,750.00          1,800.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Traffic Regulation Orders - emergency road closure by 
order - plus advertising cost (if more than 21 days' 
duration) 

       2,000.00          2,100.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Traffic Regulation Orders - parking bay suspension by 
notice - per bay, per day 

            50.00                50.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Developer-led standard Traffic Regulation Order (plus 
associated advertising/works costs) 

       5,000.00          5,000.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Tourist / private signing formal application (including 
vetting and definitive response) 

          125.00              125.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Provision of signs (including manufacture, supply and 
erection)  

 Actual cost   Actual cost  

Traffic 
Management 

Administration (including signing scheme design and 
documentation) - 20% of actual cost, minimum £100 

 Variable   Variable  

Traffic 
Management 

Supervision (including ordering work and inspection) - 
10% of actual cost, minimum £50 

 Variable   Variable  

Traffic 
Management 

Replacement (if costs cannot be recovered following 
accident, damage or theft) - full cost recovery 

 Variable   Variable  

Traffic 
Management 

Provision of access protection lines           120.00              120.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Refresh of access protection lines           120.00              120.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Road closure / diversion for sporting events (plus advert 
costs) 

          123.00              123.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Traffic cone hire - up to 5 cones             25.00                25.00  

Traffic 
Management 

Traffic cone hire - up to 10 cones             35.00                35.00  

Page 71



  Appendix I 

Traffic 
Management 

Traffic cone hire - up to 20 cones             55.00                55.00  

 

Page 72



Appendix J 
 

 

 

 

East Hampshire District Council   
Analysis of Business Rates Income & Expenditure   

   

    

2021/22 
Estimate 

    £ (000) 

      

Business Rates Yield  33,678  

   
Distribution   
Central Government 50% 16,839  

Hampshire County Council 9% 3,031  

Hampshire Fire 1% 337  

East Hampshire District Council 40% 13,471  

Total  33,678  

   

   
Business rates EHDC  13,471  

Tariff EHDC  (11,088) 

Prior year surplus/(deficit )EHDC 40% 652 

Share of business rates 2020/21  3,035 

   
Levy on growth  (449) 

Business rates grants (s31)  2,642  

   
Retained business rates   5,228  

   
* The Levy on growth is an estimate based on the NNDR1 return submitted to 
Government and is subject to change during the year dependent on business 
rates actually received during 2021/22 

   
** The s31 grants is an estimate based on the NNDR1 return to Government and 
is subject to change during the year dependant on reliefs actually awarded during 
2021/22 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix K 

 

 Recommendation from the Cabinet held on 4th February 2021: 
 
 Revenue Budget 2021/22  
 
 RECOMMENDED That Council: 
 
(a) approves the proposed Revenue and Capital Budgets for 2021/22 including a 

Council Tax rate of £136.41 at Band D, representing a 2.00% increase on the 
current charge; 

 
(b) agrees the Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital Strategy, Treasury 

Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators; and 
 

(c) agrees the Fees & Charges Schedule for 2021/22. 
 
(d) Council Tax Resolution 2021/22 

 
(1) That it be noted that (on 31st January, 2021) the Chief Finance Officer calculated: 

 
a. the Council Tax Base 2021/22 for the whole Council area as 51,407.07 [Item 

T in the formula in Section 31B(1) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 
as amended, (the “Act”)] and that this Council Tax base be split between the 
regions of the Environment Agency as follows:  
 

Southern – 17,662.82 
Thames – 33,744.25 

 
b. for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates as in 

the attached Schedule C. 
 

(2) It be noted that the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own purposes for 
2021/22 (excluding Parish precepts) is £7,012,276. 
 

(3)  That the following amounts be calculated by the Council for the year 2021/22 in 
accordance with Sections 31 and 34 to 36 of the Act.  

 
 (i)  £61,415,330 (expenditure) being the aggregate of the amounts 

which the Council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of 
the Act; 

 
 (ii)  £49,966,595 (income) being the aggregate of the amounts which 

the Council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act;  
 

 (iii) £11,448,735 being the amount by which the aggregate at d(i) 
above exceeds the aggregate at d(ii) above, calculated by the Council, 
in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its Council Tax 
requirement for the year (Item R in the formula in section 31A(4) of the 
Act);  

  
 £222.71 being the amount at 3(iii) above (Item R), all divided by 

Item T (1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 31B(1) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax 
for the year (including Parish precepts). 

 
 

Page 75



Appendix K 

 

 £4,436,459 being the aggregate amount of all special items 
(Parish precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the 
attached Schedule C) 

 
 (iv)  £136.41 being the amount at c(iii) above (Item R), divided by Item 

T  (b above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 
31B(1) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year;  

 
(4)  Valuation Bands 
 

Council Tax Schedule Band AR Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H

2021/22 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

East Hampshire District Council 75.78       90.94       106.10     121.25     136.41     166.72     197.04     227.35     272.82      
 

  
being the amounts given by multiplying the amount at 3(iv) above by the number 
which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to 
dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that 
proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken 
into account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different 
valuation bands.  

 
(5) That it be noted that for the year 2021/22 the Hampshire County Council and 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Hampshire and Hampshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority have stated the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in 
accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each 
of the categories of the dwellings shown below:  

 
Council Tax Schedule Band AR Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H

2021/22 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Parishes - see Schedule C

Hampshire County Council - Basic 666.69     800.03     933.36     1,066.70  1,200.04  1,466.72  1,733.39  2,000.07  2,400.08  

Hampshire County Council - Adult 

Social Care
83.56       100.27     116.99     133.70     150.41     183.83     217.26     250.68     300.82     

Hampshire Police & Crime 

Commissioner
125.81     150.97     176.14     201.30     226.46     276.78     327.11     377.43     452.92     

Hampshire Fire & Rescue 39.13       46.95       54.78       62.60       70.43       86.08       101.73     117.38     140.86     

990.97     1,189.16  1,387.37  1,585.55  1,783.75  2,180.13  2,576.53  2,972.91  3,567.50   
 

 
(6) At the time of publication the figures for the Hampshire County Council precepting 

body is based on current proposals. If these change before the Council meeting 
councillors will be advised. If the precepting body decides a different precept than 
stated, the Council will be provided with a revised calculation as soon as possible. 
 

(7) That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts in (4) and (5) 
above and incorporating the parish amounts in Schedule C below, the Council, in 
accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 
hereby sets the following amounts as the amounts of Council Tax for the year 
2021/22 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 76



Appendix K 

 

Council Tax Schedule Band AR Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H

2021/22 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Total charges by Parish

Alton 1,048.17  1,257.80  1,467.45  1,677.07  1,886.71  2,305.97  2,725.25  3,144.51  3,773.42  

Beech 1,016.95  1,220.33  1,423.74  1,627.11  1,830.51  2,237.28  2,644.07  3,050.84  3,661.02  

Bentley 1,051.08  1,261.29  1,471.53  1,681.73  1,891.95  2,312.37  2,732.82  3,153.24  3,783.90  

Bentworth 1,010.29  1,212.34  1,414.41  1,616.46  1,818.52  2,222.63  2,626.75  3,030.86  3,637.04  

Binsted 1,030.26  1,236.31  1,442.38  1,648.42  1,854.48  2,266.58  2,678.70  3,090.79  3,708.96  

Bramshott & Liphook 1,040.86  1,249.03  1,457.22  1,665.38  1,873.56  2,289.90  2,706.26  3,122.59  3,747.12  

Buriton 1,022.42  1,226.90  1,431.40  1,635.87  1,840.36  2,249.32  2,658.30  3,067.26  3,680.72  

Chawton 1,031.54  1,237.85  1,444.17  1,650.47  1,856.78  2,269.39  2,682.02  3,094.63  3,713.56  

Clanfield 1,034.35  1,241.21  1,448.10  1,654.95  1,861.83  2,275.56  2,689.31  3,103.04  3,723.66  

Colemore & Priors Dean 990.97     1,189.16  1,387.37  1,585.55  1,783.75  2,180.13  2,576.53  2,972.91  3,567.50  

East Meon 1,019.05  1,222.85  1,426.68  1,630.47  1,834.29  2,241.90  2,649.53  3,057.14  3,668.58  

East Tisted 1,018.55  1,222.25  1,425.98  1,629.67  1,833.39  2,240.80  2,648.23  3,055.64  3,666.78  

Farringdon 1,044.60  1,253.51  1,462.45  1,671.35  1,880.28  2,298.11  2,715.96  3,133.79  3,760.56  

Four Marks 1,026.19  1,231.42  1,436.67  1,641.90  1,847.14  2,257.61  2,668.09  3,078.56  3,694.28  

Froxfield & Privett 1,019.78  1,223.73  1,427.70  1,631.64  1,835.60  2,243.50  2,651.42  3,059.33  3,671.20  

Froyle 1,032.25  1,238.69  1,445.16  1,651.59  1,858.05  2,270.94  2,683.85  3,096.74  3,716.10  

Grayshott 1,035.39  1,242.47  1,449.56  1,656.63  1,863.71  2,277.86  2,692.03  3,106.18  3,727.42  

Greatham 1,023.50  1,228.20  1,432.92  1,637.60  1,842.31  2,251.70  2,661.12  3,070.51  3,684.62  

Hawkley 1,017.56  1,221.07  1,424.60  1,628.10  1,831.62  2,238.64  2,645.68  3,052.69  3,663.24  

Headley 1,021.80  1,226.15  1,430.53  1,634.87  1,839.24  2,247.95  2,656.68  3,065.39  3,678.48  

Horndean 1,032.59  1,239.11  1,445.64  1,652.15  1,858.67  2,271.70  2,684.75  3,097.78  3,717.34  

Kingsley 1,024.48  1,229.37  1,434.29  1,639.17  1,844.07  2,253.85  2,663.66  3,073.44  3,688.14  

Langrish 1,007.93  1,209.51  1,411.12  1,612.69  1,814.28  2,217.44  2,620.63  3,023.79  3,628.56  

Lasham 1,001.74  1,202.09  1,402.45  1,602.79  1,803.14  2,203.83  2,604.54  3,005.23  3,606.28  

Lindford 1,018.42  1,222.10  1,425.80  1,629.47  1,833.16  2,240.52  2,647.90  3,055.26  3,666.32  

Liss 1,039.13  1,246.95  1,454.80  1,662.61  1,870.44  2,286.08  2,701.75  3,117.39  3,740.88  

Medstead 1,006.08  1,207.29  1,408.52  1,609.72  1,810.94  2,213.36  2,615.80  3,018.23  3,621.88  

Newton Valence 994.62     1,193.54  1,392.48  1,591.39  1,790.32  2,188.16  2,586.02  2,983.86  3,580.64  

Petersfield 1,076.13  1,291.35  1,506.60  1,721.81  1,937.04  2,367.48  2,797.95  3,228.39  3,874.08  

Ropley 1,022.59  1,227.10  1,431.63  1,636.14  1,840.66  2,249.69  2,658.73  3,067.76  3,681.32  

Rowlands Castle 1,033.20  1,239.84  1,446.50  1,653.12  1,859.77  2,273.04  2,686.34  3,099.61  3,719.54  

Selborne 1,042.74  1,251.28  1,459.84  1,668.38  1,876.93  2,294.02  2,711.12  3,128.21  3,753.86  

Shalden 1,007.50  1,208.99  1,410.51  1,611.99  1,813.50  2,216.49  2,619.50  3,022.49  3,627.00  

Sheet 1,039.38  1,247.25  1,455.15  1,663.01  1,870.89  2,286.63  2,702.40  3,118.14  3,741.78  

Steep 1,011.23  1,213.47  1,415.73  1,617.96  1,820.21  2,224.69  2,629.19  3,033.68  3,640.42  

Stroud 1,029.03  1,234.83  1,440.65  1,646.44  1,852.25  2,263.85  2,675.47  3,087.08  3,704.50  

West Tisted 990.97     1,189.16  1,387.37  1,585.55  1,783.75  2,180.13  2,576.53  2,972.91  3,567.50  

Whitehill 1,045.65  1,254.77  1,463.92  1,673.03  1,882.17  2,300.42  2,718.69  3,136.94  3,764.34  

Wield 1,006.84  1,208.20  1,409.58  1,610.94  1,812.31  2,215.04  2,617.78  3,020.51  3,624.62  

Worldham 1,025.06  1,230.07  1,435.09  1,640.09  1,845.11  2,255.13  2,665.16  3,075.18  3,690.22   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 77



Appendix K 

 

Schedule C

TOWN & PARISH COUNCIL PRECEPTS

Parish/Town Council Tax

Precepts 

(excluding 

support 

grant)

Council 

Tax 

Band D Tax

Precepts 

(excluding 

support 

grant)

Council 

Tax 

Band D Tax

Precepts 

(excluding 

support 

grant)

Council 

Tax 

Band D

Council 

Tax 

Increase /

Base £ £ Base £ £ Base £ £ Decrease

Alton 6,982.20 671,015.00 96.10 7,173.41 713,565.00 99.47 7,141.32 735,270.00 102.96 3.51%

Beech 329.15 13,400.00 40.71 329.89 15,410.00 46.71 329.53 15,410.00 46.76 0.11%

Bentley 554.34 59,500.00 107.33 567.51 61,285.00 107.99 566.41 61,285.00 108.20 0.19%

Bentworth 281.63 10,000.00 35.51 286.50 10,000.00 34.90 287.60 10,000.00 34.77 -0.37%

Binsted 953.70 65,905.00 69.10 979.92 68,244.00 69.64 977.01 69,103.00 70.73 1.57%

Bramshott & Liphook 4,061.92 355,921.00 87.62 4,122.31 370,242.00 89.81 4,172.68 374,766.00 89.81 0.00%

Buriton 368.33 18,900.00 51.31 363.88 19,900.00 54.69 370.06 20,948.00 56.61 3.51%

Chawton 256.56 18,970.00 73.94 253.22 18,970.00 74.92 259.75 18,970.00 73.03 -2.52%

Clanfield 2,296.01 135,080.00 58.83 2,299.16 173,551.00 75.48 2,293.58 179,093.00 78.08 3.44%

Colemore & Priors Dean 77.87 0.00 0.00 75.98 0.00 0.00 73.92 0.00 0.00 0.00%

East Meon 565.32 26,792.00 47.39 563.69 27,462.00 48.72 556.92 28,149.00 50.54 3.74%

East Tisted 97.98 4,100.00 41.85 96.51 4,510.00 46.73 95.38 4,735.00 49.64 6.23%

Farringdon 354.79 35,000.00 98.65 363.05 35,000.00 96.41 362.59 35,000.00 96.53 0.12%

Four Marks 2,112.04 113,200.00 53.60 2,103.70 128,000.00 60.85 2,110.28 133,780.00 63.39 4.17%

Froxfield & Privett 481.24 22,500.00 46.75 481.12 25,000.00 51.96 482.20 25,000.00 51.85 -0.21%

Froyle 397.88 28,300.00 71.13 402.17 29,149.00 72.48 398.18 29,586.00 74.30 2.51%

Grayshott 1,239.28 95,495.00 77.06 1,279.37 100,535.00 78.58 1,311.21 104,844.00 79.96 1.76%

Greatham 335.98 15,178.00 45.18 335.41 19,640.00 58.56 333.62 19,537.00 58.56 0.00%

Hawkley 272.45 13,000.00 47.72 267.96 13,000.00 48.51 271.56 13,000.00 47.87 -1.32%

Headley 2,686.23 127,000.00 47.28 2,675.16 130,000.00 48.60 2,667.34 148,000.00 55.49 14.18%

Horndean 5,107.55 382,657.00 74.92 5,092.66 381,541.00 74.92 5,075.63 380,265.00 74.92 0.00%

Kingsley 288.93 15,100.00 52.26 286.29 17,493.00 61.10 290.02 17,493.00 60.32 -1.28%

Langrish 147.58 3,830.00 25.95 143.21 4,330.00 30.24 147.41 4,500.00 30.53 0.96%

Lasham 95.94 1,800.00 18.76 94.80 1,800.00 18.99 92.82 1,800.00 19.39 2.11%

Lindford 1,056.21 48,300.00 45.73 1,059.82 48,300.00 45.57 1,052.43 52,000.00 49.41 8.43%

Liss 2,604.18 212,900.00 81.75 2,584.64 218,208.00 84.42 2,586.73 224,250.00 86.69 2.69%

Medstead 1,418.26 39,000.00 27.50 1,497.69 40,500.00 27.04 1,493.07 40,600.00 27.19 0.55%

Newton Valence 122.73 750.00 6.11 117.61 750.00 6.38 114.18 750.00 6.57 2.98%

Petersfield 5,682.13 634,522.00 111.67 5,757.61 849,852.00 147.60 5,793.20 888,054.00 153.29 3.86%

Ropley 843.06 46,000.00 54.56 853.55 47,000.00 55.06 843.42 48,000.00 56.91 3.36%

Rowlands Castle 1,365.85 104,175.00 76.27 1,426.61 108,860.00 76.31 1,474.87 112,126.00 76.02 -0.38%

Selborne 650.12 55,000.00 84.60 652.80 60,825.00 93.18 649.30 60,502.00 93.18 0.00%

Shalden 237.38 7,000.00 29.49 234.20 7,000.00 29.89 235.27 7,000.00 29.75 -0.47%

Sheet 473.90 41,713.00 88.02 467.07 41,111.50 88.02 464.49 40,475.00 87.14 -1.00%

Steep 517.16 16,000.00 30.94 519.85 19,000.00 36.55 521.17 19,000.00 36.46 -0.25%

Stroud 152.04 11,925.00 78.43 164.70 12,720.00 77.23 184.96 12,670.00 68.50 -11.30%

West Tisted 79.57 0.00 0.00 79.85 0.00 0.00 79.14 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Whitehill 4,595.78 405,000.00 88.12 4,710.38 443,525.00 94.16 4,925.33 484,730.00 98.42 4.52%

Wield 121.65 3,500.00 28.77 121.24 3,500.00 28.87 122.54 3,500.00 28.56 -1.07%

Worldham 196.98 12,170.00 61.78 198.58 12,268.00 61.78 199.95 12,268.00 61.36 -0.68%

TOTAL/AVERAGE 50,461.90 3,870,598.00 76.70 51,083.08 4,282,046.50 83.83 51,407.07 4,436,459.00 86.30 2.95%

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

 

Page 78



  

                                                                     

 

NON-EXEMPT 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

COUNCIL                               25 February 2021 

        

PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER (DOGS) UNDER ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 

AND POLICE ACT 2014    

 

FOR DECISION  

 

Portfolio Holder: Ingrid Thomas, Portfolio Holder for Neighbourhood Quality 

Key Decision: Yes  

Report Number: EHCL/062/2021 

 

1. Purpose 

1.1. This paper is submitted to Council:  

1.2. To make a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) – in relation to dogs for the 

District of East Hampshire under the Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act 2014. 

1.3. To adopt a dog friendly approach providing consistent messages around dog 

control and to promote the responsibilities of dog ownership.  

2. Recommendation 

2.1. At its meeting held on 4 February 2021, Cabinet recommended to Council that it 

makes a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) in relation to the control of dogs 

under the Anti-Social Behaviour and Police Act 2014. To include the following 

offences: 

a. Person in charge of a dog must remove faeces deposited by that dog. 

b. Failure to put the dog on a lead when requested to do so by an authorised 

officer. 

c. Exclusion of dogs from fenced and gated play areas. 

Page 79

Agenda Item 7



  

                                                                     

 

d. Dogs must be on a lead in East Hampshire District Council owned 

cemeteries. 

 

2.2. That £100 fixed penalty notices are adopted to tackle offences disclosed.  

2.3. Delegate authority to the Head of Service for Neighbourhood Support in 

consultation with the portfolio holder to carry out all necessary publicity required 

by virtue of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (Public Space 

Protection Orders) regulations. 

3. Executive Summary 

3.1. On 4th July 2019 Cabinet approved consultation to be undertaken regarding the 

making a of a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) – dogs in East Hampshire. 

(See section 13: Background Papers). 

3.2. The Crime, Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act 2014 created new powers to 

replace previous and existing legislation for the control of dogs in public areas. 

3.3. One such power is the Public Space Protection Order (PSPO). The legislation 

also places a requirement on the council to publicise the nature and extent of the 

orders.  

3.4. These powers provide a clearer and more consistent approach to dog control and 

make it easier for everyone to understand what a dog owner’s responsibilities are. 

They also provide an opportunity for the council to reinforce its message of zero 

tolerance in relation to littering.  

3.5. Between 22nd July to Monday 23rd September 2019 a consultation process was 

undertaken to include the public, parish/town councils and other key stakeholders.  

3.6. The council received over 600 responses.  

3.7. The following restrictions have been identified for inclusion within the order: 

a. Person in charge of a dog must remove faeces deposited by that dog. 

b. Failure to put the dog on a lead when requested to do so by an authorised 

officer. 

c. Exclusion of dogs from fenced and gated play areas. 

d. Dogs must be on a lead in East Hampshire District Council owned 

cemeteries. 

Page 80



  

                                                                     

 

 

3.8. The legislation provides for a maximum penalty of £100.  

3.9.         The enforcement, legal and financial implications of the recommendation are to           

                be met within existing budgets and already established enforcement processes,  

                which are designed to be cost neutral.  

4. Additional Budgetary Implications  

4.1. None. 

5. Background and relationship to Corporate Strategy 

5.1. The Corporate Strategy promotes “an environmentally aware and cleaner East 

Hampshire” and “a safer, healthier, more active East Hampshire.” The PSPO will 

support these themes and the values for responding to the needs of our 

communities through evidence and respecting and supporting each other and our 

residents. 

6. Options considered 

6.1. Option 1: do nothing  

6.2. This option is not viable. The current, old legislation is not enforceable, unclear 

and does not reflect the concerns of the public in relation to issues associated 

with dogs.  

6.3. Option 2: That the Council makes a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) in 

relation to the control of dogs under the Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act 

2014. 

6.4. This is the preferred option. It is a balanced response to the findings of the 

consultation exercise requested by EHDC Cabinet in July 2019 and will help to 

promote the “environmentally aware and cleaner East Hampshire” and “a safer, 

healthier, more active East Hampshire objectives of the Corporate Strategy.  

6.5. The option will be implemented through existing mechanisms of patrol and 

enforcement.  

Page 81



  

                                                                     

 

6.6. There are no additional resource implications anticipated with this option. The 

cost of implementation will be met through existing budgets.  

6.7. This option carries with it the potential to increase public expectation around 

patrol and enforcement and so this could be considered a risk. However, the 

PSPO carries with it the requirement to inform the public and through 

communication this risk will be mitigated.  

6.8. We do not expect any adverse impact on customer care or experience. In contrast 

we expect to see a positive impact in public relations in addressing issues around 

dogs as frequently reported by residents and the public.  

7. Resource Implications 

7.1. Financial Implications - Signage to be provided by existing Neighbourhood Quality 

budget in council owned fenced and gated play areas and cemeteries. For land 

not owned by EHDC, costs to be met and signage erected by the land owner.  

        Specifically -  

a. Signage – estimated cost of £1500.00. Included within budget. Specifically, 

the income generated by litter enforcement budget that sits within 

Neighbourhood Quality.  

b. Any signage costs for parish and town councils would need to be paid for by 

the land owner. 

c. Enforcement and prosecution costs – estimated cost is neutral. Work to be 

undertaken by East Hampshire Commercial Services (EHCS) under pre-

existing arrangements.  

Section 151 Officer comments 

Date: 02/11/2020 

Any financial implications are contained within current budgets. 

Page 82



  

                                                                     

 

 

 

7.2. Human Resources Implications – None anticipated.  

7.3. Information Governance Implications – The issuing of Fixed Penalty Notices will 

result in the retention of personal information including the name and address of 

an individual. East Hampshire District Council has an existing mechanism for the 

processing of this data through EHCS, in the same way information would be 

handled for a littering offence. Therefore, further implications are not expected. 

7.4. Other resource implications – None anticipated.  

8. Legal Implications 

8.1. The provisions of the 2014 Act will replace the existing Dog Control Orders 

(Prescribed Offences and Penalties, etc.) Regulations 2006 and the Dog Control 

Orders (Procedures) Regulations 2006, which implement sections 55 and 56 of 

the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 (prescribing offences and 

penalties to be contained in, and procedures and forms for making, dog control 

orders), together with the other sections of the Act relating to dog control orders. 

Dog Control Orders replace the previous system of byelaws for the control of 

dogs, and also the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996, which has been repealed.  

8.2. The Crime, ASB and Policing Act 2014 has replaced previous legislation and 

amongst other things places a requirement on the council to publicise the nature 

and extent of the order.  

8.3. A local authority may make public spaces protection order if satisfied on 

reasonable grounds that two conditions are met. These conditions are justified to 

the council through the consultation carried out in 2019.  

8.4. Under the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act (Publication of Public 

Spaces Protection Orders) Regulations 2014 the Order must be published on the 

Council's website and the Council must cause to be erected on or adjacent to the 

public Space to which the order relates such notices considered sufficient to draw 

the attention of the public the fact that the order has been made. 

Page 83



  

                                                                     

 

The first condition is that— 

(a) activities carried on in a public place within the authority’s area have had a detrimental 

effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, or 

(b) it is likely that activities will be carried on in a public place within that area and that they 

will have such an effect. 

 

The second condition is that the effect, or likely effect, of the activities— 

 

(a) is, or is likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature, 

(b) is, or is likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable, and 

(c) justifies the restrictions imposed by the notice. 
 

8.5. Under the PSPO, prosecutions for failure to pay any fixed penalty notice for the 

above offences will be pursued under The Crime, Anti-Social Behaviour and 

Policing Act 2014.  

8.6. The enforcement of the legislation is open to East Hampshire council officers or 

those authorised by the council.  

8.7. East Hampshire District Council has a pre-existing contract with East Hampshire 

Commercial Services (EHCS) to provide a service (patrol, issue fixed penalty 

notices and prosecute if a fixed penalty notice is not paid) on behalf of the 

Council.    

8.8. Legal support would be required for the drafting of the PSPO based upon the 

recommendations within section 2 of this report.  

8.9. legal services have been consulted in the preparation of this report. 

 

 

Monitoring Officer comments 

Date: 27.01.21 

No further comments to the legal implications comments set out above.  

 

Page 84



  

                                                                     

 

 

 

9. Risks 

9.1. The updating of existing legislation and resulting publicity carries with it the 

potential to increase public expectation around enforcement in much the same 

way as the public expect to see action taken with regards to litter.  

9.2. A communication strategy is in place to mitigate this, specifically addressing the 

legislation and what this means for key partners, residents and visitors to East 

Hampshire.  

10. Consultation  

10.1. A consultation process was carried out between 22nd July to Monday 23rd 

September 2019 using a survey provided through East Hampshire District 

Council’s website. This was accompanied by posters and social media posts. 

Paper based surveys were also available upon request.  

10.2. The council received over 600 responses to the survey including several 

submissions from councillors and interested organisations. Of those that 

answered, 71% of individual respondents regularly walk one or more dogs. 

Specific findings showed strong support in the following areas: 

a. People out with a dog must remove dog faeces and have with them the 

means to do so [usually bags]. 

b. People out with a dog must put the dog on a lead if asked to do so by an 

authorised officer. 

c. Dogs must be on a lead in EHDC-owned cemeteries. 

d. Dogs to be banned from fenced and gated children’s play areas, skate parks, 

tennis courts and multi-use games areas. 

e. Control of dogs in Queen Elizabeth Country Park. Respondents are less 

certain about extending current arrangements regarding control of dogs in 

Queen Elizabeth Country Park. 

Page 85



  

                                                                     

 

10.3. With regards to item a. People out with a dog must remove dog faeces and have 

with them the means to do so [usually bags],  concerns were raised by a key 

consultee (Kennel Club) over the proposal that people out with a dog must 

remove dog faeces and have with them the means to do so [usually bags]. In 

addition, some respondents raised concerns over people being unfairly penalised 

who had used and disposed of the bags they took with them or had given their 

spare to another dog owner in need. The practicalities of a council officer being 

able to enforce this option was also questioned. Therefore, the requirement for 

people to have the means [usually bags] with them has been removed.    

10.4. Item b. People out with a dog must put the dog on a lead if asked to do so by an  

authorised officer. Item c. dogs must be on a lead in EHDC-owned cemeteries and  

item d. to be banned from fenced and gated children’s play areas, skate parks,  

tennis courts and multi-use games areas were all strongly supported.  

10.5. With reference to Queen Elizabeth Country Park, item e. respondents were less 

certain. There are already specific seasonal measures to cover visitor access. 

The park will benefit from the making of the district wide restrictions in relation to 

picking up after a dog, putting a dog on a lead when asked to do so and dogs not 

being allowed in fenced and gated play areas.  

10.6. During the consultation process, a concern was raised by Hampshire 

Constabulary that the risk of introducing the PSPO would be an increase in 

demand for police officers/PCSOs to enforce the rules. EHDC does not expect 

Hampshire Constabulary to carry out this role. 

11. Communication 

11.1. A communications lead has been identified and a communications strategy is in 

place, internal and external. Town and Parish Councils have been briefed. 

Councillors newsletters have been used and media updated with action up to 

date.  

12. Appendices 

12.1. None, 

Page 86



  

                                                                     

 

13. Background papers 

13.1. Cabinet report 4th July 2019 - Public Space Protection Orders (Dogs) under The 

Anti Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 to replace existing 

byelaws and Orders  

 

https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MID=2462#A

I10542 

 

Agreed and signed off by:  

 

Portfolio Holder: 21.01.21 

Director: 12.01.21 

Monitoring Officer:       

Section 151 Officer: 12.01.21    

 

Contact Officer:  

Name:  Ryan Gulliver 

Job Title: Neighbourhood Quality Manager  

Telephone: 01730 234 167  

E-Mail: ryan.gulliver@easthants.gov.uk   

Page 87

https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MID=2462#AI10542
https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MID=2462#AI10542
mailto:ryan.gulliver@easthants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Leader and Corporate Strategy Portfolio – Cllr. Richard Millard 
 
Environmental Services 
EHDC’s Environmental Services continue to be carried out in a successful manner 
with Norse South East staff adhering to all government Covid safe working 
guidelines.  Staffing levels have been mainly unaffected by the pandemic, with only a 
few individuals having to self-isolate. 
   
Due to snow fall, waste collection services were cancelled because of health and 
safety reasons on the 25th January. Garden waste and bulky waste services were 
cancelled during that week to enable crews to collect the missed waste.  A 
communication plan was put in place using all social media channels, along with 
briefing the Customer Service team who dealt with calls from concerned residents. 
All residual and recycling collections missed on the 25th were caught up during the 
week with a very minimum final catch up on the Saturday. 
 
On 9th February NSE were unable to gain access to some streets due to snow and 
ice on the Hard to Reach round.  Customer services were informed and NSE 
supplied updates throughout the day of streets they were unable to access.  
Communications were published our website and social media and residents told to 
leave their bins out to be collected as early as possible, dependent on conditions.  All 
bins were collected by the end of the week. 
 
Leisure 
The district’s leisure centres remained closed in line with current national Covid 
lockdown regulations.  Officers continue to work with the operator on the appropriate 
level of support to ensure the sustainability of the leisure centres. 
 
We have successfully secured £220,000 from the national leisure recovery fund to 
support SLM through this unprecedented time. 
 
Whitehill & Bordon Update 
The regeneration programme continues at pace with construction work progressing 
across all sites, with a total of 724 new homes completed; 598 jobs safeguarded and 
created across the three major development sites in the town.    
 
Officers continue to work with Whitehill & Bordon Regeneration Company (WBRC) to 
deliver the new Town Centre; it is understood that 14 of the 17 indoor shops at The 
Shed / Makers Market are let whilst construction is still under way.   
 
Project partners are still pushing forward in the difficult pandemic conditions to 
progress the Health Hub.  Whilst this remains challenging, we're very grateful to our 
NHS partners for continuing to work on the plans.  We hope to have firm plans and a 
timescale for delivery agreed over the next couple of months. 
 
The Leisure Centre opened to the public in December 2020 and was very well 
received by the local public.  The centre will re-open once Government Covid-19 
restrictions are lifted.  
 
The Green Loop, a partnership project with Hampshire County Council and funded 
by the Enterprise M3 Local Enterprise Partnership is progressing on time and within 
budget.  Recent phases completed include Alexandra Park and the upgraded path  
through Honey Pin Orchard, Ennerdale Road to Station Road.  The section from 

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



Junction 2 -3 on the A325 is due to be completed in the next few weeks.  In the next 
month it is anticipated work will be starting on Conde Way and at the Whitehill 
Village Hall.  A Wayfinding Strategy has been developed working with the local 
community, local schools and with landowners to support navigation of the Green 
Loop.  The strategy is currently being finalised and implementation will take place 
over the summer.  
 
Officers are continuing to work with WBRC who are developing on-demand transport 
provision in the town.  They are proposing a service called VOCA, and discussions 
are continuing to ensure that this service is reliable and affordable for residents as 
well as better for the environment by reducing reliance on individual car use.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 90



Deputy Leader, Welfare and Community Engagement – Cllr. Julie Butler 
 
Covid Response work 
 
The number of calls to our Local Response Centre has reduced but the cases can 
be more complex and take longer to resolve; our staff continue to go above and 
beyond, ensuring that our residents are safe. 
 
The community groups, Community First and volunteers continue to work effectively, 
and we are fortunate in East Hampshire for having such committed volunteers and 
organisations. 
 
This is highlighted in our continuation of the Community Co-Ordination Group which 
has representatives from health, Citizens Advice East Hampshire, Community First, 
town councils, rural parishes and southern parishes.   
 
Cllr Grants  
 
The deadline for this year’s Councillors Grants applications is 26th February, please 
ensure all applications are sent in by then to ensure all funding can be spent.  A 
reminder that £1,000 must be spent on Environmental projects. 
 
Supporting Communities Fund Relaunch 
 
The Supporting Communities Fund will reopen on 1st April. The Covid recovery 
support criteria which was added last year, will remain for this round of funding. 
Applications must be received by 31st May.  Due to Covid, the usual visits to the 
successful projects from 2019 has not been able to take place, so we asked the 
organisations to send in a video of their updates.  The link is here 
https://capitacouncilspartnership-
my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/ruby_ellis_easthants_gov_uk/EYJ5x-m5I8pAu-
uRPL_iEcgBy8-tPrNMszJVnnpToT1vyw?e=sHyraO 
 
Spring Into Health for Whitehill & Bordon 
 
We plan to hold a series of hybrid events throughout May, including face to face 
sessions (if guidelines allow) and online sessions.  An invitation has been sent out to 
encourage groups and partners to get involved.  

EHDC Housing 

1. The Pinewood Village Hall temporary accommodation project is progressing 
well.  The tender for the management, maintenance and support provider is 
due to be published late February, with an expectation that the business case 
will be presented to Cabinet in May. 

2. The creation of the Affordable Housing Cabinet Liaison Panel was approved 
at Cabinet on the 4th February.  The panel will provide an excellent 
opportunity to engage with Cllrs on projects such as Pinewood, prior to 
consideration by Cabinet. 

3. Housing Officers have actively been seeking further opportunities to increase 
affordable housing supply, assisted by the land agent/site finder Tony 
Langridge.  Opportunities in Ropley, Lasham and Rowledge show promise. 

Page 91

https://capitacouncilspartnership-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/ruby_ellis_easthants_gov_uk/EYJ5x-m5I8pAu-uRPL_iEcgBy8-tPrNMszJVnnpToT1vyw?e=sHyraO
https://capitacouncilspartnership-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/ruby_ellis_easthants_gov_uk/EYJ5x-m5I8pAu-uRPL_iEcgBy8-tPrNMszJVnnpToT1vyw?e=sHyraO
https://capitacouncilspartnership-my.sharepoint.com/:v:/g/personal/ruby_ellis_easthants_gov_uk/EYJ5x-m5I8pAu-uRPL_iEcgBy8-tPrNMszJVnnpToT1vyw?e=sHyraO


4. Housing Officers have secured a grant of £46,000 from the SDNPA to part 
fund extensive works to a property for a severely disabled child in 
Chawton.  The council is adding to these funds through the Disabled Facilities 
Grant and Affordable Housing Developer Contributions.  This project 
epitomises successful inter-agency working, with HCC, NHS, SDNPA, EHDC 
and Clarion Housing Association working collaboratively.  The building works 
are expected to complete in March this year. 

Climate 
 
We have granted the first permission to some residents in Alton, which will allow 
them to plant wildflowers on East Hampshire District Council owned land.  It will help 
to improve the biodiversity, look more attractive for passers-by.  It is my hope this will 
be one of many community- led projects such as this.  There are two more requests 
in the pipeline which we look forward to agreeing before spring. 
 
Training has commenced on carbon literacy and climate awareness for staff in 
departments such as building control, housing, and planning policy.  We have also 
formed a Cabinet Liaison panel working group to ensure that all Councillors have 
regular access to relevant material. 
 
I have been asked to support and endorse a grant application bid for PCAN 
(Petersfield Climate Action Network).  This application is to undertake domestic 
energy efficiency work.  I was delighted to support their bid as it demonstrates how 
we can make partnerships such as this work for the benefit of the climate. 
 
We continue to work alongside Hampshire County Council.  EHDC have met on 
several occasions to agree an approach for the use of pesticides and locating 
electric vehicle charge points in residential areas.  We are also working as part of a 
consortium to secure additional funds for our retrofit energy efficiency programme 
through BEIS Green Homes Grant scheme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



Property – Cllr. Tony Costigan 
 

I will start with the latest credit control position, as that remains a key priority for the 
team. They have continued to diligently collect further receipts against March, June 
and September quarters, which all now stand at around the 95% mark.  A good 
achievement in difficult conditions and it is fair to say that it has tended to be the 
same parties that have not paid for each quarter.  
 
An open dialogue continues in relation to those cases of arrears, which are being 
managed within the constraints currently imposed on Landlords under the 
Coronavirus Act, until at least 31st March. 
 
Collection for the most recent quarter (December) currently stands at 87.6% at the 
time of writing.  Payments have generally followed the pattern of previous quarters 
hence 90%+ collection is anticipated, albeit replicating 95% again may be a stretch, 
given the further and sustained lockdown.  
 
Once again this has hit the retail sector hardest and inevitably further retailers will be 
exploring insolvency options.  As previously reported, EHDC has less than 20% (by 
income) exposure to that sector, with the largest retail asset being Rams Walk, 
which remains in demand.  Aside from recently completing numerous lease renewals 
there, terms have now been agreed on a further renewal and negotiations are 
ongoing with several other retailers who are keen to renew.  The team is also in 
discussion with several interesting retailers who would like a presence at Rams 
Walk, should the right sized unit fall available.  Change will occur, Rams is well 
placed to evolve in line with the future needs of retailers and consumers and is 
viewed as a long-term investment. 
 
Approximately 1/3rd of the rent roll is derived from supermarkets, which continue to 
be sought after by the investment market, given security of rent receipts. Industrial 
units remain the top performing property sector; huge strides have been made by the 
team transforming the income profile at Woolmer over the past 12 months and terms 
are expected to be agreed imminently to re-let the second largest unit owned there, 
on strong terms.  That would follow on from the success of re-letting the largest unit 
owned, reported in my previous full report, and would amount to approximately 
£330,000 p.a of new rent committed from just those two units. 
 
Team focus remains on acting in a commercial manner to generate the best returns 
possible from the investments.  Void levels are modest at around 6% (by income) but 
re-letting those void units and securing existing income that is subject to risk through 
lease renewal or break is ranked an equal priority to rent collection, cashflow is key. 
 
On the operational front, the team continues to play a full role in supporting the 
Council’s response to the Covid pandemic. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



Governance and Legal – Cllr. Nick Drew 
 

Democratic: 

  
 Democratic Services would like to welcome David Penrose and Lauren 

Kennedy as new Democratic Services Officers.  David joined the team on a 
permanent basis from 1 February and Lauren joined on 8 February.  
 

 Democratic Services have arranged for upcoming training for Scrutiny and 
Cabinet members with a date to be concluded shortly.  This will focus on the 
process of setting annual work programmes and will build on recent general 
scrutiny training made available for Members. 

  

Legal 
  

 The IKEN legal case management software upgrade is now scheduled for 11th 
March, with training to follow shortly thereafter. 
 

 Covid-19 Business continuity plans remain in place and all Legal team 
members continue to work remotely, with a restricted rota in place for staff 
living locally continue to attend the office once a week to complete the sealing 
of essential documentation.  

 

 A second round of permanent recruitment is underway for two property 
solicitor roles; this will achieve cost efficiencies, with the appointees to replace 
agency staff.  

 

Digital 
 

 There are a number of major upgrades underway to ensure continued 
compliance of council systems which support frontline services such as 
Revenues and Benefits and Elections.  With confirmation that local elections 
will proceed in May, ensuring the timely changes to the IT will support the 
team as they focus on the logistical complexities of delivery. 
 

 A major programme to upgrade officer laptops and desktops is also 
underway, which will improve performance of these devices as new ways of 
working continue and support EHDC ability for employees to work remotely. 
 

 In light of ransomware attacks on local authorities in the past councillors are 
being asked to complete Dojo training for cyber security, which provides a 
useful overview of security and data protection matters.  In Quarter 4 the 
council will be procuring additional tools to assist in building awareness on 
this important matter, with a view to implementation in from April onwards.  
This is to be funded by an LGA grant. The council is also working with 
MHCLG and our IT service provider to ensure there are appropriate controls 
in place to protect our data. 
 

Governance 
 

 Officers have continued to develop a detailed action plan following the 
Governance Review. This will come forward to Standards Committee, 2nd 
March.   

Page 94



 The Annual Governance Statement is also being drafted, which will be 
considered by Audit Committee following year-end. 

 
Health and Safety (H&S) 
 
DSE assessments are up to date and reviewed by the H&S team. 
  
Further review of office space has been undertaken and additional controls 
implemented to ensure the space remains covid secure in light of the new variant 
and increased transmission rate e.g. mandatory face coverings. 
 
Contractors, monitoring continues ensuring that compliance is taking place in line 
with the HSAWA.  
 
Monitoring from a health and safety perspective continues of our contractor Norse for 
health and safety aspects, ensuring documentation is in place and monitoring is 
taking place.  
 
The Joint Health and Safety Committee meeting took place in January 2021, minutes 
are available on Skoop. 
 
The council’s Out of Hours service at EHDC, continues to offer support, advice and 
guidance to members of the public and partners when the offices are closed.  

 
Business Continuity (BCP) 
 
No issues, risks or concerns to report. 
 
Review of P1/P2 critical functions has been undertaken to ensure there is sufficient 
resilience in the council to continue to deliver these services if reasonable worst-
case scenario re staffing levels was realised. 
 
All services have completed a desk top exercise to test their BC plans.  This exercise 
will be repeated again on a regular basis to ensure BC plans remain up to date and 
relevant. 
 
Monitoring of the impacts of Brexit continue ensuring that services are able to 
continue.  To date the plans in place to manage the traffic flow have been 
successful. There have been no detrimental impacts noted across Hampshire.   
 
Emergency Planning 
 
Annual training programme is underway for the Emergency Control Centre staff.  
 
New roles and arrangements are being introduced within the (ECC) across the 
county to streamline and simplify the approach.  
 
We are continually monitoring the weather situation and where required passing on 
information as and when required.  Recent storms required support with sand 
bagging required across the council.  
 
We are reviewing the Adverse Weather Plan in conjunction with several other teams. 
Primarily relating to snow and the impacts on services, like waste, streets and 

Page 95



grounds. Flooding guidance booklets are being reviewed and updated.   
 
Strategic HR and OD 
 
Covid 19  
The HR service continues to support staff and managers in relation to the pandemic.  
This includes the second wellbeing survey referred to above and general advice and 
support to managers and staff members in relation to the natural conflict between 
homeworking and home schooling. HR is also working closely with Heads of Service 
to identify potential staff who could be redeployed to a variety of roles to support the 
NHS e.g. vaccination centres, testing centres. 
 
Communications  
 

 Publiclity has focussed on sharing latest coronavirus updates and guidance 
including national restrictions and vaccination advice  

 We’ve also been targeting wards which have had a higher number of cases 
and working with councillors to share important messages  

 Ongoing promotion of grants and support available to businesses during the 
pandemic 

 Promotion of free parking for vaccinations 

 We've sent six business bulletins out since the beginning of the year 

 We have also sent two grant-specific bulletins to a list of 171 businesses that 
have contacted us about grants during the pandemic to highlight the help 
available. 

 We're currently maintaining an 81% engagement rate with our business 
mailing list of around 2,000 email addresses. 

 The stay safe, shop local campaign is currently paused during the national 
lockdown, with preparations underway to relaunch when lockdown is lifted. 

 

Website and social media report 

www.easthants.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Website update 
 
The East Hampshire District Council website has had more than 85,000 visits so far 
this year. This is a slight increase compared to last year (82,000 visits). 
 
The website is mainly viewed from London (16%) and Alton (13%).  The most visited 
service areas so far this year have been bin collections, planning, council tax and 
coronavirus support information. 
 
Website improvements 
 

 Business grants restructured with clearer titles and dates to help businesses 
apply for grants 

 The main six boxes on the website have been changed to include more 
coronavirus information (vaccines, things to do in lockdown etc) 

Page 96

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


 New icons have been created for the main six boxes to make the homepage 
more engaging  
 

Social media update 
 
We have been sharing a broad range of messaging; including public health 
information, lockdown guidance, as well as business as usual content such as 
service updates relating to bin collections. 
 

· Facebook: +189 likes (total 4,688), reach 114,351 
· Twitter: +26 likes (total 3,621), reach 39.5k, 1,447 profile visits 
· Instagram: +58 likes (total 933) 
 

Nextdoor 
 
In December 2020 we launched our East Hampshire District Council profile on 
Nextdoor, the platform is based around communities sharing information and advice 
with each other. 
 
As a public sector organisation, we automatically gain access to all of those who use 
the platform and are registered as living within the district – each user must input 
their post code when they join. 
 
Our audience is made up of 17,893 members which equates to 26% of 53,753 
households. 
 
E-newsletters: 
 
We have gained 251 new subscribers so far this year.  The total number of 
subscribers is currently 17,532  
 
49 bulletins have been sent this year with an engagement rate of 79.6%.  The 
national average engagement rate for local government is 64%. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



Planning – Cllr. Angela Glass 
 

Local Plan 
 
At Full Council on 14th January, 2021, approval was given to following Option 4, 
within the report to council, to progress the Local Plan.  This offered a hybrid 
approach, which recognises the content of the White Paper, Planning for the Future, 
and enables EHDC to be part of the Government pilot scheme, with regard to future 
digitization of the planning system. Digitization will remove much of the paperwork 
currently involved with Planning Applications.  In view of the unavoidable delays that 
have taken place to date, the Plan period would be extended from 2017-2036, to 
become 2017– 2038.  There had been a possibility that the housing numbers for the 
District would have to be increased, but following lobbying from the public, Damian 
Hinds MP, and other MPs across the country, they will remain the same for this 
District, with any extra housing, only being required to fulfil the extra two year 
extended period. 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Spending Protocol 
 
At Full Council on the 14th January, 2021, approval was given for the CIL Spending 
Protocol.  This has enabled the Policy team to compile the relevant Application forms 
and Explanatory Guidance, which will appear on the EHDC website shortly.  
Applications from Town and Parish Councils and others, for funding to complete or 
add to projects for infrastructure linked to future development, can then be received 
within a set period of time, usually within 5 weeks.  Going forward, Applications will 
be considered on an annual basis, within the set time frame.  EHDC has been 
collecting CIL contributions since 2016, and there is over £2.5 million in the pot 
awaiting allocation.  
 
Development Management 
 
There is little change in the current situation, with numerous small householder 
applications being received, and few if any major applications.  The large number of 
small householder applications usually receive delegated decisions, instead of being 
brought to Planning Committee.  If an application is from a member of staff, or a 
District Councillor, then it has to be brought to Committee for consideration.  Any 
major applications are quite often delayed, awaiting Statutory Consultee comments. 
Statutory Consultees typically include Hampshire Highways Authority, Hampshire 
County Ecologist, Thames Water, the South Downs National Park Authority, and 
EHDC Landscape, Environmental Health, or Traffic Management teams, depending 
on the nature of the application.  In view of the pandemic, there have been 
understandable delays in receipt of these comments from Statutory Consultees, 
which has been a factor in the cancellation of some Planning Committees in recent 
weeks. 
 
The next Planning Committee will take place online, at 6 pm on Thursday 18th 
February. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98



Finance – Cllr. Charles Louisson 
 

Finance 
 

The Covid-19 pandemic continues to pose a significant challenge to local government finances. 
The Quarter 3 monitoring report has been prepared.  The projected deficit in the net cost of 
services for 2020/21 of £1.415 million, £192,000 worse than projected in the Q2 report, driven 
by ongoing weakness in parking revenue. To date central Government has provided the council 
with grants of £1.500 million to help support during the Covid-19 pandemic. This produces an 
overall year end forecast surplus position of £0.086 million. 
 

Proposals for the 2021-22 budget have been prepared and are included elsewhere in the 
council papers. 
 

Revenues – Business Grants 
 

Since November 20, we have paid grants totalling over £6.5 million to over 800 local 
businesses. 
 

We are continuing to pay out Business Grants but the number of applications being received 
each day have reduced. Payment runs are being done twice a week and most of our applicants 
are receiving their grants within 10 working days from application. 
 

Elections Team 
 

Preparations are continuing for the forthcoming Hampshire County Council and Police & Crime 
Commissioner Elections in May 2021, and communications with residents have started with 
particular focus on encouraging the use of postal voting to reduce the health risk of large 
numbers of residents attending polling stations.  
 

The traditional overnight count will be replaced with daytime counts, again to minimise the risks 
associated with large indoor gatherings.  
 

We will be working very closely with our colleagues at Havant to increase resilience and ensure 
successful elections are run. 
 

EHDC Land Charges and Street Naming and Numbering 
 

Service demand is extremely high as the property market in East Hampshire and nationally is 
very buoyant. The service is processing searches at a twenty year high, in January 2021 over 
400 searches were requested, in January last year the number of searches was 233. The 
Stamp Duty taxation break seems to be the primary driver in the property market currently. 
Budgeted Income from searches has recovered from a very slow start in April / May 20 when 
the country was in the first lockdown. 
 

My EHDC (CRM) 
 

Over 4000 new portal user accounts (total users now stand at over 23,000) have been made 
since we upgraded our customer facing portal in October last year. The Portal has been a vital 
part of delivering end to end services to our customers (especially the waste service) during 
Covid19 lockdowns. This has reinforced the need to bring more service areas into the CRM.  
Street Naming and Numbering will be the next service to go live (expected March 21) 
 

Insight Team 
 

We continue to update the economic dashboard for the Business and Economy Recovery 
group. Data from the most recent Coronavirus Residents survey, undertaken in December, is 
being compiled and will be shared with members shortly. Initial results show a decline in Mental 
health and wellbeing amongst residents since Wave 1. 

Page 99



Community Development, Placemaking & Infrastructure – Cllr. Robert Mocatta 
 
Place-Making Update February 2021 
 
I am pleased to report continued good progress with place making projects across the 
district and ongoing liaison amongst all tiers of local government to support delivery of 
projects: 
 

 The Alton Station Forecourt project continues, now at the stage of design 
consideration and approval amongst the project partners.  Works are expected 
to start on site in the summer 2021 and to finish at the end of the year. 

 Discussions are beginning amongst local stakeholders on planning the future 
of the community space to be delivered as part of the redevelopment of the 
Former Molson Coors brewery site in Alton.  

 The district council, Hampshire County Council, Petersfield Town Council and 
South Downs National Park Authority continue to work on a comprehensive 
plan for improving pedestrian safety and promoting active travel in Petersfield. 
This work complements what EHDC has done in the LCWIP and helps re-open 
the High Street safely.  Priority projects are being identified to take forward for 
delivery. 
 

Work continues to plan for re-opening the High Street safely including 
commissioning business engagement work for the district’s town centres, co-
ordinating activity across the district council and continuing to promote the “Stay 
Safe, Shop Local” campaign. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



Economic Development and Rural Affairs – Cllr. Ken Moon 
 

Business and Economic Recovery Programme  
 
Work continues to progress on the council’s economic recovery programme to 
provide support to businesses in the short, medium and long term.  Whilst the 
outlook is very challenging for many of the district’s businesses, there are also some 
very positive signs of resilience in certain economic sectors including advanced 
manufacturing, engineering, healthcare, digital and ICT related industry.  
 
Covid-19 – business support 
 
The Economic Development Team continues to provide direct advice to our local 
businesses on sources of grant funding and support during the current pandemic. 
The team is working closely with the business rates, customer services and 
communications teams to help businesses apply for grant funding.  This work will 
continue to be a priority over the coming months as national lockdown restrictions 
continue to apply.  
 
EHDC Apprenticeship scheme 
 
The scheme, which provides grant funding for businesses to take on an apprentice, 
has recently made two new placements, leading into Apprenticeship Week which 
runs from 8th - 12th February.  The ED Team, supported by Communications, will 
be sending out social media messages to provide guidance, advice about 
apprenticeship recruitment. The development of apprenticeships is a key strand of 
the council’s economic recovery programme.  
 
Kickstart Scheme  
 
The Economic Development Team continue to promote the national Kickstart 
scheme. This provides funded work placements for 16-24s claiming universal credit 
as a stepping stone into sustainable employment.  The team are actively working 
with council service areas to create placement opportunities across the authority.  
Building Control are the first service to request a placement through the scheme and 
the application has been forwarded to DWP for approval.  
 
The scheme is also being promoted to local businesses and business bulletins have 
been sent out to inform local businesses of a recent change in procedure and to 
promote the scheme generally.  Businesses are no longer required to provide 30 
placements or use a Gateway provider so they can submit a single placement direct 
to DWP.  This may help accelerate take-up across East Hampshire’s small and 
medium sized businesses.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



Neighbourhood Quality – Cllr. Ingrid Thomas 
 

Environmental Health 

 

Food & Safety team 
 
The team continues to respond to requests for advice from businesses about the 
current lockdown restrictions.  They are also dealing with complaints about 
businesses not complying with restrictions.  
 
They are working closely with the Covid Marshalls who are patrolling the council 
area daily.  The marshals produce daily reports of matters that they have dealt with 
that require further attention, and these are passed to the Food & Safety team to 
action. 
 
The Covid Marshals are interacting with members of the public and businesses and 
are continuing to receive positive feedback from both about their reassuring 
presence.  
 

Licensing team 
 
‘Taxi’ businesses have been able to continue trading throughout the Covid 
pandemic.  A letter was recently sent to all licensed drivers and operators providing 
an update on the Covid requirements and the key areas that apply to the trade.  In 
collaboration with the Economic Development Team, the letter also provided details 
of government support grants that some drivers may be eligible for, as some have 
been affected financially despite being able to trade.  A steady number of enquiries 
about these are now being received. 
 

Environmental Protection 
 
Air Quality  
The Air Quality Annual Status Report (ASR) for 2020 has been delayed, due to team 
resources being diverted to deal with issues and increased demand because of Covid-
19.  With agreement of DEFRA, a combined report covering two years can be 
submitted for the deadline of June 2021. 
 
Air quality sampling has continued during lockdowns, which will ensure a data set will 
be present for comments and conclusions to be made. 
 
AQUIND Interconnector Hearing  
The Service continues to submit information and review the draft Development 
Consent Order (draft DCO).  On Wednesday 17th February, there is an issues specific 
hearing scheduled.  The hearing will include a review of the proposed exemptions 
sought by the applicant, that would prevent statutory noise nuisance powers under 
section 82 of the EPA 1990 being considered during both the construction and 
operational phases.  This would prevent parties taking actions to control or restrict  
problems and prevent the court issuing sanctions if control measures were not 
followed. 
 
 
 

Page 102



Parking & Traffic Management 
 
The team continue to patrol and enforce across the district carrying out their duties in 
a Covid safe manner, however, due to the lockdown many areas that the team 
regularly visit are much quieter than normal.  This has presented an opportunity, and 
given the flexibility and commitment of the team, some may be re-deployed to help 
resource community testing facilities within East Hampshire. 
 
Site visits are an integral part of what the Traffic Management team delivers for the 
district each year.  However, under the circumstances the team has had to identify 
new ways of delivering their service without impacting on the overall outcome.  As a 
result, the team has seen some success, not only delivering on the works 
programme for 20/21 but also exceeding their income targets in relation to 
Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders that have been required throughout the year. 
 
Neighbourhood Support 
 
Recently a successful prosecution of a large fly tip was achieved, we are publicising 
this to try to educate the public that they must check the details of people who take 
away their rubbish to ensure they are correctly licensed and will not fly tip the 
rubbish. 
 
The compliance team have been extremely busy through this period and served 
several injunctions, one of which is on the encampment at the bottom of Worldham 
hill for which the parish council have expressed their thanks. 
 
A great deal or work and several consultations have taken place to ensure that the 
Public Space Protection Order which is part of the agenda of this meeting is 
supported by the public including many dog owners.  The problems created by the 
few irresponsible dog owners need to be tackled and this order will enable officers to 
serve a fixed penalty notice on offenders.  
 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 2021-22 Revenue Budget, Capital Budget, Reserves and Balances, Capital Strategy, Treasury Management Strategy and Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)
	Appendix A Draft Budget EHDC
	Appendix B MTFS EHDC
	Appendix C Capital Programme EHDC
	Appendix D Capital Bids EHDC - 2122
	Appendix E Analysis of Reserves EHDC
	Appendix F CFO Statement EHDC
	Appendix G EHDC Treasury Management Strategy 2020_21ii
	Appendix H EHDC Capital Strategy 2021-22 to 2025-26
	Appendix I EHDC Fees & Charges 2021
	Appendix J Business Rates EHDC
	Appendix K Council Tax resolution EHDC 2021

	7 Cabinet and Committee Recommendations
	9 Portfolio Holder Reports to Council

